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2
3 THE COURT: Good morning, everyone. I've just
4 passed a note to Counsel that was received this morning
5 from, by my Iaw clerk. I believe it's juror number two
6 has indicated some difficulty on her job. You can pass
7 that back to me if you would. And what 1 -- I'm not
8 sure what an extra hour for lunch is, but I do have to
9 stop Court at some point today to handle my docket.

l0 So. certainly it would afford her, I guess if we do it
II around lunch time, say eleven o'clock or so. It should
12 afford her an opporttmity to do whaiever she needs to
13 do. Does either attorney, the State or the Defense
14 have any problem with that?
15      MR. URICK: No, I  believe it 's the big
16 gentlemen in seat nmnber two.
17 THE COURT: Yes, I believe so, on the back
18 row.
19 MR. URICK: Yes,
20 THE COURT: DO you have a problem with that
!l Ms. Gutierrez?

22 MS. OUTIERREZ: NO, Judge I don't, but I
23 guess in light of the other comments on the note l just
24 thought I'd ask that the Court inquire, you know if
25 there's anything that the Court can do to help verify
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1 if there's an issue that his employers, you know the
2 Madame Clerk can be of assistance. We certainly don't
3 want this juror's mind off on -- lie's sitting on jury
4 duty being engelfecl in his job.
5 TEE COURT: I would be happy to ask that
6 additional question and, Mr. Urick you wouldn't have no
7 problem with that, do you?
8 MR. URICK: No, Your Honor.
9      THE COURT: I would, before I brink all the

tO panel, just bring juror number two and then inquire.
11 Let him know what time we'll try to get him so that he
12 can -- if eleven o'clock, 11:30 which would work for
13 him to have that extra hour. As I said I need to
14 handle my docket. Before you bring the jttry out though
15 1 understand there are motions or issues or --
16 MR. URICK: ..Can we approach?
17      THE COURT: Something you need to*dn outside
18 the presence of the people in the courtroom?
19      MR. URICK: lql take it back, I can do it
20 from,here.
21       THE COURT: Okay.
2 2 MR. URICK: At this time, ,Your Honor the
23 State would like to renew it's previously made motion
24 for a mistrial. Yesterday in front of the jury Defense
25 Counsel got up on two oceaaloas. One occasion she
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said, I never received this witness's CV or resume.

2 Later when we brought State's Exhibits 44 and 45 she
3 stood up again in front of the jury and said, I have
,~ never seen these exhibits. At the bench conference Ms.
5 Mtuphy proffered to the Court how she had pursuant t¢
6 Defense request to see all possible exhibits in the
7 case made available all the 44, 45 other exhibits.
8 Defense was allowed to view them, copy anything they
9 wanted to at that time.

l0 This morning Mr. Waranowits came up to me and
11 handed me something, he said, I want to give you this.
12 I was upset that she said she had hot gotten this
13 material. It's a --
14      THE COURT: Okay. Wait a minute, slow down.
15 The gentlemen that you said you spoke to was who?
16      MR. URICK: Abe Waranowitz, the witness.
17      THE COURT: Said to you th is morning?
18      MR. URICK: He handed me an item, said I want
t9 to give this to you. J was upset that she said she had

'20 not gotten these materials. What he handed me is first
21 of all, a Federal Express receipt or air bill rather
22 which is his sender's copy for the -- when be mailed
23 the large overlay map to Ms. Gutierrez. That was
24 mailed on Odioher 8th, 1999.
25 The second thing is a copy of a fax that he sent
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I to Ms. Guticn'cz on De~-mbe~ 7th, it's a nine page fax.
2 Page one is his resume, page two am a list of seven
3 cell sites with the site name, addicsses, the.latitude
4 and longitude for those sites. Page ~ are the
5 error call report from that date. Page fovr is a copy
6,of what we entered as State's --
7      THE COURT:  State 's  447
8 Me.. UalCK: I'm just checking on that.
9 Forty-five. The next one is a copy of State's 44 and

10 then there's four pages of cell sites along with their
l I frequency plan which is technical data relating to the
12 cell sites.
13 So, Ms. Gutierrez not only had an opportunity to
14 observe and copy this stuff in our office, she actually
15 had the materials faxed to her. For her to stand up in
16 front of the jury and say she had never seen it is a
t7 egregious misconduct that is overly prejudicial.
18 That's why we're at this time renewing our motion for a
19 mistrial.

20 In lieu of that, if the Court's not inclined to
21 grant a mistrial we would ask for a motion in limine
22 that Ms. Gutlerrez be instructed not make any eorrtment~
23 related to discovery matters or issues in front of the
24 jury and the -- that the Court givea curative
25 instruction and a con~etive statement that this is not
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I did have the numbers of the coil sites as they appear
2 there in large letters and that ultimately we were able
3 to figure that out. I received nothing else from any
4 source. Certainly never received except for the
5 disclosure that we discussed yesterday, the State's
6 amended disclosure that I believe is stamped in and my
7 offi~ stamp is received on October 8th or 9th, I'm not
8 sure which day. That was the two page amended
9 disclosure that should have a list of cell sites and

tO said, an address would trigger this cell site 9r that
11 cell site, that is the only diselosttre, We never
t2 received any other lists --

1 3 THE COURT: Ms. Gutierrez, really to he
14 honest with you, you could go on. The Ccort found that
15 the discovery rules.had been made by the State. It in
16 fact ruled against you and I would tell you that as far
17 as l'm concerned I feel that the materials that you
18 should have gotten were turned over to you and I agree

that there may have been some misunderstanding, there
i1290 may have an abundance of records that were provided to
tl you with -- with no indication by the expert as to what
Z2 each item was, but I did find that the discovery rules
z3 had been met and I ruled against you. With regard to
z4 the motion for mistrial 1 will tell the State it is
15 denied. 1 have inslrueted the jury and I've reminded
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l evidence and that it was incorrect informatinn that was
2 stated.

THE COURT: Ms. Gutierrez, you don't really
4 want to he heard on that. do you?

MS. GUUERREZ: No, Judge. Only to correct
6 the record. Ms. Murphy did not testify that she gave
7 it to us, that she saw anybody xerox it. 1 think I
8 made the record very clear. Although the Court asked
9 her repeatedly, she didn't say what Mr. Uriak tries to 9

l0 imply that she said yesterday. I will state l 0

l I categorically for the record, the only thing that 1 11
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I them on numerous occasions that there will he
2 opportunities when the Defense would make aad'state
3 things and that the State would make and state things
4 regarding legal issues that if they were done in front
5 of the jury that it is not evidence. That the
6 attorneys were acting in an appropriate fashion to
7 indicate those itams that should not or would not he
8 reflected in their consideration. That they are not

issues for the jury, that the evidence comes from the
witness stand. That the evidence are those items that
were marked an admitted into evidence. That they would

12 received from -- and again, I didn't receive it from
13 the State at all, it 's there obligation no matter what
14 other source from which I can get it from Mr.

12 be referenced by way of red and blue stickers and that
13 they should disregard the statements of Counsel because
14 what State and what Counsel says is not evidence in

t5 Waranowltz's hess who's name I don't remember, but I'm
16 sure i can locate, was the overlay map without the
17 underlay that is large that l believe duplicates or was
18 presented to duplicate the colored portion that appears
19 on the board.
20      THE COURT: An you indicated that  you got  the
21 overlay without the benefit of the map, --

22      MS, GUTIERREZ; Yes.
23      THE COURT: So the overlay was meaningless to
24 you beeatkse you didn't have it.
25      MS. GUI~R~F'Z:  Wel l ,  except that  we --  i t

15 this case. I did indicate that on the outset, I think
16 I even said it a couple time during the COLU'~ of the
17 trial and so, with regard to the motion for a mistrial
18 made by the State 1 do deny that.
1 9 I would ask both Counsel, I 'm not picking on

20 either one, that during the course of the proceedings
21 if I asked you to come to the bench that you keep your
22 voices down, that you not raise them. I would indicate

23 that it allows us to handle bench conferences in such a
24 way that the jury can not hear what is being said. I
25 would add that in light of the fact that this is a very
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I large courtroom and the jurors have already said that
2 they can't often understand the attorneys unless they
3 speak up. I think that we have a courtroom where if we
4 all just, you know keep our voices raised out there and
5 whisper at the bench we'd he able to handle that.
6 So, for the reasons indicated I don't believe
: there's been any unfairness, 1 don't believe tbere's
8 been any misunderstanding by the jury that was being
9 said with regard to evidence or what rulings I'm making

10 relative to those evidontiary issues are just that.
11 And so for that reason the State's motion is denied. I
12 don't helievo there's any prejudice that's been placed
13 against the State at this junctane. With regard to any
14 Other issues before I bring the jury out?
15 MS. GUTIERREZ: Judge, I do have, as the

It 6 Court -- as the Court knows I arranged to get a Defense17 copy of the videotape yesterday and I reviewed most
18 parts of that videotape for particularly reason
19 regarding the Court's ruling and when I did I observed
20 two separate things that concern me.
21 The first of which was that at some point we were
22 up at the bench and waiting for something and the jury
23 was sitting there and the Court allowed the jury,
24 encouraged the jury to get up and walk orget water.
25 And at least three jurors walked over to the water
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fountain by the clerk and went and obtained paper cups.
The water fountain which has the bottled water on top
of it is what people use. Lodged right next to it

4 (inaudible) another water fountain that you would bend
5 down. And I earlier observed (inaudible) --
6      THE COURT: ls there something behind the
7 water cooler?
8 MS. GUTI~RREZ: That behind the water
9 fountain is where the guards place the handcuffs. I

10 believe that would be, you know. not have the handcuff
11 visible in an attempt to hide them, but once one gets
12 to the water fountain the handcuffs are readily visible
13 if one looks.
14 Additionally, at the end of the day when we were
15 trying to sort out time and the Court was trying to
16 settle out and ultimately arrived in asking everyone to
17 he here at 8:30. In front of the jury, the Court I
18 believe inadvertently, certainly had a little
19 discussion with the guard about can you get him here at
20 8:30 and the jury was still in the room because you
2~ were trying to figure out what time to tell them and,
12 you know --
23      THE COURT: Are you making a motion?
!4      MS. OUTIERREZ: Well, I am, Judge, but for
25 certain relief and I guess, I don't want to make it
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I worse, I don't want to draw any more attention. I
2 don't know and you couldn't tell from the tape whethr
3 the jurors actually looked down. l just knew because t
4 had observed them there. That once you're there you
5 can see them on the ground and they're plainly visible,
6 the handcuffs.
7 I guess my request for relief would he to gently
8 advise the jury, you know you may have observed
9 yesterday that I made a comment that clearly indicated

tO Mr. Syed was in custody and again, you know I'm
t I entitled to keep that out, but at this juncture I'm not
t2 asking for relief. What's done is done and whatever
13 inferences they made am made. What I'm concerned
14 about is that they get correct information. My belief
15 is that if you bring it out and say it so that they
t 6 don't think something otherwards, do ypu know? And
17 just to advise them, you know the fact that he may have
t8 been incarcerated pending this trial is not something
19 that you're allowed to hold against him to consider as
20 eviddnce, whatever heeause my belief is that jurors.
21 will strive to live up to their duty and although I
22 don't want to underscore it I think that if the Court
23 just mentions it without even saying why you think the)
24 might, but to remind them, you know. TI~ fact that he'
25 incarcerated and what inadvertently is not something

. Page 17:
that you could consider against him.

THE COURT: I'd be happy to do that.
3 Actually, 1 recalled my remark and if --
4 MS. OUTIERRBZ: It didn't occur to me, 1 mean
5 I remember hearing it, but it never occurred to me
6 until 1 looked at the tape last night.
7 THE COURT: If it's all right, I could say
8 that you might have observed that the Defendant has
9 been occupied by someone from the institution each day

10 You're not to consider that as anything relative to
11 anything, that is he is considered innocent until
12 proven guilty and his status pretrial is not of
13 anything for your concern. Does the State have any
14 objection to that?
15      MR. URICK: State would oppose any comment on
16 this subject. We think that it would be incorrect to
17 address it. They clearly can that he's -- that the
18 guard is present. I don't think they have any more
19 information now then they had previously.
20 THE COURT: In light of the fact the Defense
21 has requested this curative instraetion I'm inclined to
22 give the curative instructions for the reason that the
z3 Defense has requested it. And I would note that
24 arguably the Court concedes that it did make the remark
25 and perhaps that would assist and ask or inquire first,
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1 Officer Gilmore, arc they in fact your shackles? 1
2 OFFICER GILMORE;  Ye~.  they  a i - ,  Your  Honor. 2

3 THE COURT:  A l l  r ight, 3

4 OFFICER GILMORE: TO sit on them all day long 4
5 it kind of tough. 5
6 THE COURT: l iLqdgrstand. 6

7 OFFICER GILMORE: I could wear them on my 7
8 side, hut then the shackles would be visible on my side 8
9 rather than having them out of sight. 9

1 0 THE COURT: Is thel~ anywhere els~ we could 10
11 place them that would be convenient to you? I 1

1 2 OFFICER GILMORE: Thc problem with me purling 1 2

13 thorn in my pocket is when I come -- when someone comes 1 3

14 to relieve me I haw to take them out and give them to 14
15 the other officer which is more of a deal 15
16 THE COURT: All right. Could we - 16
17 MS. GUTIEREEZ: Well Judge I guess I'm not 17
18 requesting that you move them. In light of the fact 18
19 that the Court is going to say something -- 19

2 0 T H E  C O U RT:  O k a y.  Ve t ) '  w e l l . 2 0

2 1 MS.  GUTIEREEZ:  To the  ju ry,  I  th ink  tha t , 2 1

22 you know they're just they're as unobtrusive as 22
23 possible, if they see them they see them. 23

2 4 THE COURT:  F ine. 2 4

25 MS. GUTIEREEZ: I will note that of all the 25
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1 days that was the only day the jurors got up from their 1
2 seats and walked somewhere else in the courtroom, 2
3 THE COURT: And under the circumstances we 3

4 had delayed them, it was v(arm. 4
5 M S .  O U T I E R R E Z :  Ye s , 5

6 THE COURT: And I actually observed a number 6
7 of people actually seek the water including you. 7
8 MS. OUTIERREZ: Yes. 8
9 THE COURT: SO, we will leave them where they 9
10 were and I will provide the Defense -- the jurors with
11 the cttrative insmiction. Is there anything else?
12 MS. OUTIERR.EZ: Yes, Judgel In -- again, in
13 light of my review of the tape yesterday particularly t 3

4 as to the part where the Court and it was late in the 14
15 day, the Court essentially made a finding that the 15

16 State's use of the expert was misleading. And having 16
t7 reviewed carefully the Court's instructions and the 17

18 Court's assertion that of course it was going to give 18

19 us great leeway in light of that to cross examine. 19
20 That's really, frankly why I was reviewing the tape, 20
21 that hecause of what was gothg on l had not laken great 21

22 notes although l did write, youknowtheState'suseof 22

23 the expert is misleading, but that's the ponion of the 23
24 tape my intent was to review last. In light of what I 24
25 believe is a finding by the Court and not withstanding 25
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the Court's offer to sort of let us with greater leeway
then would normally occur including, you know, telling
us we could ask the exact same questions and make the
exact same inferences of this witness in our cross.
Judge I seriously believe that that is not sufficient
to make up for the misleading nature of Mr.
Waranowitz's testimony and we would request relief.

Number one, I would move to have the entire
testimony of Mr. Waranowitz stricken and the jury so
advised that it is stricken. That notwithstahding
everything they heard you have stricken it and that
they should disregard it and pay no attentign and in
that instruction advise the jury, you know that it is
unusual to do so, that it is being done so without that
testimony having been afforded an opportunity to cross
examine.

And furt~r, I would move that the Court advise
the jury that the Court has found that the use of this
person as an expert was misleading in that that is the
basis for striking this witness' testimony. Having
reviewed that and as a result of reviewing that
literally going back to listening and watch the entire
videotape.

Notwithstanding the Court's efforts which were
numerous to advise die jury, you know, when things
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shifted and this expert was attempted to be led
somewhere else and limiting or qualifying th'at person
to the jttry and did that on numerous occasions, you
know, for the very reason that led the Court to find
and to alter the Court's position and understand that
of course there had to some remedy. The State chooses
to put on a witness intending to mislead, we believe
that the remedy of jnst expanding out right to cross
examine thereby attacking that testimony is not

10 sufficient. They shouldn't be allowed to mislead the
I jury. They shouldn't be allowed to attempt to mislead

12 the jury and all the efforts of the Court to blunt the
impact of that we believe altogether a~ not.

And 1 will tell you, Judge I thought very long and
hard about this as the Court must he aware, as a
Defense lawyer I would never willingly give up any
opportunity to cross examine an adverse witness. But 1
believe allowing this witness' testimony to stand in
light of the misleading nature of it is so violated of
due process that the remedy the Court has fashioned by
allowing broader cross examination and ordinarily 1
would have does nothing to blunt the misleading nature
of where the State was allowed to go with this witness.
And the only remedy is to strike the witness' entire
testimony and advise the jury of why the Court has done
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I SO.
2 THE COURT: Does the State wlsh to be heard?
3 MR. URICK: Yes, Your Honor we have a counter
4 motion.
5 THE COURT: No*, I would like to hear you
6 respond to that motibn fast.
7 MR. URICK: I will proffer to the Court that
8 when we went to Ms. Waranowitz -- when we were talking
9 to him we said, we've got cell phone records and we

10 have stateraents that this AT&T Wireless phone were in
11 these locations and these ealls were received were
12 made. Is it possible to test the system to see if it
13 is possible for the system to respond in those places
14 in these manners and that was the test to cheek out the
15 cell phone r~ords and the statements to soe if it can
16 be shown that this -- that the system can respond in
17 this way. He explained to use you can never say from a

18 c¢11 phone record the spot where something was, you can
19 never prove that. You can only show through the fact
20 that it initiated a ca~I through a cell site, that it
21 was in that coverage area for that cell site. But you
22 can go to specific locations and see if it's possible
23 for the system to respond as the cell phone records do.
24 That was his test. that was the purpose of it.
2 5 THE COURT: Do you believe that the test that
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you presented to this jury was indicative of what you
were UTing to prove?

MR. UglCK: Yes, I do. We asked -- we told
4 him what we wanted to show and we left it up to him as
5 to how to do it based on his knowledge of the system.
6 He went out and he did that and this shows that this is
7 -- that the system in fact can respond in this manner.

THE COURT: You would agree diat there are
9 some flaws in his tests though.

10 MR. URICK: I don't believe they are flaws
1 t because I think ha showed enough knowledge of the
12 system and of the different phones, specifically Nokia
13 and Eriekson that we should be allowed to say, would a
14 properly functioning Nnkia phone he capable of
15 responding to the system in this way and would it be
16 recorded in this way. We think based on his expertise
17 and training he can. Ms. Gutierrez would have a full
18 right to talk about the different functions of
19 different brand phones in relation to the test because
20 that goes to the weight to which it should be give, not
Zl to it's admissibility. The admissibility is that it is
!2 helpful to the finder of fact in evaluating the
~3 information.
!4 THE COURT: Mr. Urick, why isn't it
15 irrelevant what a particular phone, an Eflckson did on
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1 a particular day when the witness has shown through
2 your questions that there are variables that would
3 affect the performance of the phone which effectively
4 makes your test totally irrelevant. If the weather was
5 different, if there were leaves on the ~a'ees, if the
6 model of the phone was different. I mean doesn't in
7 fact everything you've presented make the test null an
8 void and irrelevant to this proo~ding? You didn't
9 indicate that you did it with the same -- ran the test

10 on a day when the weather conditions were identical to
11 the date that you allege that the body was b~ried.
12 That the weather conditions were such that there was m
13 ice on t i le  t rees,  thole were no leaves on the t rees,
14 that there was no snow on the ground, that the
t5 temperature was about the same, that the equipment the
16 was used to test was the same.
17 Your testimony that you've presente~ has not
18 indicated any of the factors that your own witness say
19 affects th~ performance and thereby doesn't the test
20 itself.become misleading to a jury, to give the
21 impression that the phone that was the subject of this
22 case performed in the same way. I mean granted, the
23 weight of the testimony must be made, a weighing must
24 be made by the jury, but my question is aren't we
25 borde~ng on h-relevant versus relevant because the
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weight is so tenuous here dim it might not even way
anything at all?

MR. UPJCK: The State respectfully disagrees,
4 Your Honor. What we were showing is that yes, it is
5 possible for this system to respond in the way that die
6 cell phone records thdieate it in fact did. We are
7 showing the possibility that it did. This is
8 corroborative of other testimony, hence it has great
9 relevance, it goes into eorroborntion.

10       THE COURT:  So  you ' re  say ing  no  mat ter  how
11 weak or tenuous this might he that it is yet -- it is
12 only one item to he weighed in the context with other
13 items that it occurred in the fashion that you've
14 presented?
15      MR. URICK: Yes,  i t  is  corroborative,
16 therefore it is irrelevant.
17     THE COURT: That is with Wild's testimony
18 that the phone did ring while they were at certain
19 places to corroborate the fact that he was in fact in
20 the areas that you've indicated.
21 MR. URICK: Yes.

THE COURT: I  $~.
23 MR. URICK: And that that particular phone
24 would in fact register the particular records that it
25 did as to the cell site that the call was initiated to.
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I Hence it is corroborative and it's relevant. The
2 degree to which it is would be weight.
3 THE COURT: 1 Im~stundi And that's your
4 response to that -- the motion of the Defense at this -
5 - at this point with regard to striking all of Abe
6 Waraoowitz's testimony?
7 MR. URICK: Yeah, and I believe he could
8 adequately explain the degree to which it is a
9 justifiable test for that situation.

10 THE COURT: With regard to the Defense motion
11 I won't strike Abe Waranowitz's testimony. However,
12 I'm going to instruct the jury and I'd ask that both
t3 the State and the Defense fashion an instruction to be
~4 used at the close of the ease when I provide them the
15 instruction as to how an expert's testimony shall be
16 vioccgd. And so I'd ask that Counsel make a note that
17 rll be looking for an instruction to be submitted
18 along with the other instructions specifically with
19 regard to Abe Waranowitz's testimony. I don't know if
20 there will be any other instructions that may have been
21 provided, but I will also indicate and reiterate that
22 t~ Defense because of the tenuous natttre of tbe test

that was run, I'm still am going to give you great
]22~ latitude on cross with regard to bringing out those

i25 issues that would affect the reliability of the testsPage 22

1 that was run and would aid the jury in making the
2 weighing that Counsel has just indicated, will have to
3 be done with regard to the value if any, that the jury
4 may find with regard to Mr. Waranowitz's testimony
5 regarding his test.
6    However, 1 find that Mr. Waranowhz's testimony in
7 other aspects with regard to his expertise in the
8 knowledge of the network system was indeed extremely
9 helpful and I do find that that information was of the
t0 quality that expert testimony is normally rendered in a
I1 proceeding and I do not find that there was any error
12 made in accepting him as an expert. I also find that
13 in fact, the fact that he is an experl he was able to
14 help us sift through the value that or the problems
15 that may have existed with regard to the test that was
16 run.
t7 So with that in mind, keep in mind I will be
18 looking for an instruction relative to how Mr.
19 Waranowitz's expert testimony and that test should he
10 viewed. Mr. Udck, you said you had some ether issue
II or motion.

MR. URICK: Yes, 1 wou{d based on my previous
13 proffer to the Court move that i'd be allowed to ask
14 him based on your expedonce and understanding of the
15 system would a properly functioning Nokia phone he able
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1 to interact with the system in the same way.
2 THE COURT: Okay. In light of the questions
3 of the Court yesterday, Ms. Gmierre-z, do you have any
4 objection m that question?
5 MS. otrrlERREZ: Yes, Your Honor.
6     THE COURT: All right. I will allow him to
7 answer that question only as it relates to -- you'll
8 have to lay the foundation that the Court soft o went
9 into out of the presence of the jury, his knowledge he

10 testified during that period that be had tested Nokias
] t and other phones in the past, that they performed in
12 certain ways, that it had to do with the modal.of the
13 phone. You lay that foundation and then.1 will let you
t4 ask the question you just posed. You do not lay that
15 foundation for his basis of knowledge, the question
16 will be sustained.
17      MR. URICK: Thank you. I would ask that the
18 item that I provided the Court be marked as State's
19 Exhibit One for the motion of 2/9 and that it be
20 incorporated into the Court file.
21     THE COURT: Which -- which item is that?
22      MR. UPdCR: The fax, Your Honor and receipt.
23      THE COURT: You're asking that the fax and
24 receipt be marked for identification purposes?
125      MR. URICK: As far as an exhibit for the
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I ruction, tha motion exhibit,
2      THE COURT: You're welcome to submit itas an
3 exhibit for the motion and why don't we give it a
4 different sticky number apart from -- why don't we make
5 it Exhibit 100. You're not going to have a 100, ~e
6 you?
7       M R .  U R I C K :  I  doub t  i t .
8      THE COURT: V~ly don't we make it Exhibit 200
9 to make sure, absolutely, positively and put on there

10 motion for mistrial, I think that was part of your
l I evidence.
12             (Slate's Exhibit No. 200 was
13              received into evidence.)
14
15 And for the re~ord the Court does recall that Ms.
16 Gutierrez did qualify that she was not sure if someone
17 in her olfice may have reodived this is as part of the
18 stack, but that she did not have an indetgaadent
19 recolleetionofhavingseen it. That wasmy
20 recollection of what Ms. Gutiernez said at the bench.
21 Ms. Gutierrez.
22     MS. GtrIIERRF~ Well, the only difference,
23 Judge is I stated alTu-matively, not that I didn't
24 recall that it could have been --
25      THE COURT: That it codid have been pm-t of a
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I pile.
2 MS. GLrITERRFZ: Well, it may well have been
3 part of not receipt by my office as part of the
4 literally thousands of documents in the State's
5 attorneys mandated review, but as particularly as
6 related to what's been marked and introduced as State's
7 Exhibit 44 and 45 that, you know I note that there's
8 nothing on either of them that either identifies what
9 they are, when they were made, for what purpose.

10 Waranowitz's or AT&T'S does not appear and that, you
11 know I had not seen them, I had not received them. 1
12 did not mean and I don't believe what I said yesterday
13 in anyway intimated, well maybe there was this
14 possibility that someone else from my office at some
15 point received something that wasn't brought to my
16 attention. I'm not stating that.
17 THE COURT: Very well.
18 MS. GUTIERREZ: I'm not inferring that or
t9 intimating that.
!0      THE COURT: Very well. We could go back and
2t forth about what may or may not have existed. I think
22 the record is clear on this issue. The Court's
23 position is that the mistrial request is denied. I do
24 not find that there is sufficient information that
25 would warrant a mistrial and so, therefore it is
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] denied. And 1 understand that this item will now be
2 part of the record..It is marked as Exhibit 200 for
3 the support of the Defense -- of the State's motion for
4 mistrial. Any further?

MR. URICK: I don't believe you ruled on my
6 alternative motion in limine that Ms. Gutierrez be

instructed not to make comments in front of the jury.
THE COURT: I did rule on that, actually. I

9 said, that no, I was not going to give a particular
10 instruction in limine, but that rather I'd ask both
II Counsel that when you're at the bench that you keep
12 your voices down, that you're out in the open air, that
t3 you be reminded that the jury can bear what you're
t4 saying, l'm not going to specifically instruct anyone
L5 to that degree and that I will reiterate as often as 1
16 can when I hear Counsel speaking that what you all are
17 saying is not evidence. I will continue to do that as
18 I've done so far in the trial and I will continue to do
19 that. At this time I would just ask both Counsel just
20 try your ease, it's the only thing I ask you to do,
21 The jury knows what the evidence is going to be.
22 They're going to be instructed that they should
23 consider only the questions and the answers of the
24 witness -- excuse me, the answers of the witness that
25 testify and sworn that the evidence are those items

1 that ate evidenfiary stickers that are placed into the
2 file and that those things are the things will take
3 back and they'll be able to consider them. At this
4 point, I'm going to ask if Counsel is here on my
5 docket.
6 (Court hears other matters, case resumes as
7 follows:/
8      THE COURT: All right. If we could have the
9 jury come out.

10 MS. OUTIERREZ: Are we going to bring the one
II juror.
12 "I-HE COURT: I'm sony. ,
13 MS, OUTreRREZ: Are you going to bnng the
14 one juror?
15 THE COURT: Yes. You said juror number two,
J 6  fi g h t  . . . .
17 MR. UI~CK: ML Waranowitz i8 out in the
18 hallway. Should be wait there7
19 THE COURT: He should wait there until we
20 deal with the issue with the juror and we will make
21 sure the juror -- Juror number two if you would step up
22 please. We've received your note, good morning.
Z3 Perhaps you should come all the way up here. Just come

!24 all the way up and they can hear you, there's a
25 microphone here. I just need to ask you a few
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I questions. Step back so that Ms. Gutierrez can get --
2 just turn. Can you turn your body on an angle? There
3 you go. You've indicated that you need an extra hour
4 for -- to take care of something at your job.
5      JUROR: Yes.
6 THE COURT: If we wen to break for lunch say
7 around eleven and allow you to do -- or 11:30 and alloy
8 you to go from 11:30 to say 1:30, would that allow you
9 t o - -

10      JUROR: Yes.
11 THE COURT: Do what you need to do?
12      JUROR: Yes. Yes, I just need to get over to
13 the Community College of Baltimore.
14      THE COURT: The Community College of
t5 Baltimore?
16 JUROR: Yes, ma*am..And talk to my
17 supervisor and sign some -- because if you don't sign
t8 your time sheets for two weeks --
19 THE COURT: YOU will not get paid?

JUROR: NO, you won't get paid and you won't
21 have a job.
22      THE COURT: All right. Now, --
23      JUROR: l*m a contractual worker.
24      THE COURT: All right. And 1 understand that
25 you noted that you need to do this. If you are able to
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do this would this then satisfy your concerns?
JUROR: Yes.
THE COURT: All right. And fl~re's nothing

4 about your job or your home situation that's
i interfering with your ability to pay attemion or allow

6 you to be -- continue to be fair and impartial?
7      JUROR: No. One of my co-workers called me
8 last night.
9      THE COURT: Ol te of  your co-workers alerted

t0 you to the fact that you needed to get up there.
] I JUROR: That I needed m get up there, yeah.
12 THE COURT: All right. Ms. Gutierrez, arc
13 you satisfied? Mr. Urick, arc you satisfied?

MR. UPdCK: Very much so. Thank you, Your
15 Honor.
16      THE COURT: Very wall, sir. At 11:30 we will
17 break, I have the rest of my docket that I'm going to
18 deal with and so. we'll allow you to do that and we'll
t9 bring the jury back at 1:30.
2 0       J U R O R :  A l l  r i g h t .
21      THE COURT: Very well.. Also at 1:30 you'll
22 hear me tell you, the jurors what they can do to get
23 )aid and you should do that as well.
24     JUROR: Thank you.
25      THE COURT: You may take your seat. There's
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no reason you should leave. Yes.
2 UNraqOWN: (inaudible)

THECOURT: At 12:30. I understand, but I
4 :an make arrangements for him to be paid at 1:30, I wa~
5 told as well. Thank you. Put that in the file, and if
6 we could bring the remaining jurors.
7      MR. URICK: yeah, just ask the witness to
8 come in. It's okay for the witness to come in?
9      THE COURT: Whatever you'd like, Mr. Urick at
t0 this point.
I I MR. URICK: Thank you, YetV Honor.
12 THE COURT: Obviously you've directed them
13 and that's what -- she's gone so, she'll do whatever
]4 you've told her to do.
15      MR. URICK: I apologize if I was
16 ~resRmpt~ous,
[7       THE COURT:  Tha t ) s  a l l  r ight .  I  just  wan ted

18 to have the jury together as much as possible. Sir,
19 you make take the witness stand.
20      MR. WARANOWITZ: Thank you, Your Honor.
21     (The jut,, returned to the courtroom.)
22      THE COURT: Good morning, ladies and

gentlemen.
JURY: Good morning.
THE COURT: I thank you for being here
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promptly this morning. I was advised that you all were

2 here promptly at 8:30. We have dealt with sorr~ matters
I this morning and I want to let you know that we're
4 going to proceed with this case. Before we get started
5 I ne~ to bring to your attemion that at close of the
6 day yesterday I made some reference to the fact, asking
7 the correctional offioers to transport the Defendant
8 and you may have notioad that through the course of the
9 trial that he is, the Defendant has been escorted by

l0 someor~ from Corrections. please he advised that that
I l means nothing. The pretrial status of the Defendant
12 whatlm" he's incarr~ratad or not is not relevant to
13 this c.as¢ ill anyway and should not he considered by you
14 ill any way whatsoever with lx~gard to the facts,
15 cimumstonces, cvi~nce or anything regarding this
16 cast).
17 All individual as I indicated to you at the outset
18 charged with the Defense is innoccm until proven
19 guilty: The State priors that burden at all thnes, so
20 the~fore his pretrial status should have no relevance
21 or bearing on you whatsoever during the course of this
22 trial or your deliberations, At this time we're going

to continue with the testimony of Mr. Waranowitz and at
this time the State I bellow has a few questions.

MS. GUTIERREZ: We would just have a
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continuing objection to any further quastions asked.

THE COURT: Yes, and as wc proceed I'd ask
that Counsel he advised that -- of my previous ruling
with regard to this witness, ask that those preliminary
foundation questions be made if you intend to go in the
area that we've previously discussed.

MR. URICK: Thank you,  Your Honor. At this
time I'll oontinue with what I was going to do when we

, were breaking yesterday. If the witness may get off
to the stand and approaob.
11     THE COURT: Yes, and Mr. Uriek, I must remind
12 you, you must keep your voice up. The jurors have
t3 indicated they can not hear you. 1 know the mie is far
14 away from you, but I think that part of the problems
t5 that so are the easels. So, if you could keep your
16 voice up so that your voice can be heard it would be
17 greatly appreciated.
18      MR. URICK: I will do that. Thank you, Your
19 Honor.
2 0 THE COURT: Mr. Waranowitz, please step over
21 to the easel.
2 2 EXAMINATION

23       BY MR.  URICK:  I ' d  ask  h im  to  approach wha t ' s
24 bo~n marked for identification as State's Exhibit 33.
25          (State's Exhibit 33 was marked for
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l identification.)
2 MR. URICK:
3 Q Mr. Waranowitz, at this time I would ask you
4 on the map to find the spot you testified to at Gclston
5 park and to fix this sticker that says Park at that
6 location on the map. Secondly, I'd ask you to find the
7 location that you identified yesterday as the 2700
8 block of Gateway Terrace. Affix the sticker that l
9 wrote A. T-E-R-R. at that spot. I would note for the

to record that he has affixed those stickers at the two
ll places he identified yesterday later in the day when
12 everybody was using Scotch tape I'm going to put tape
13 over those to make sure that they are permanently
t4 affixed. You may returned to the stand at this time.
15 At this time I'd move into evidence State's Exhibit 33,
16 the exhibit that he just affixed the final stickers to.
17      THE COURT: And 33 includes the map only, is
I8 that correct?
19      MR. URICK: That's the map and the overlay.
20      THE COURT: And the overlay, they're two
2t separate exhibits?

MR. URICK: I have them as a collective
23 exhibit, I can mark them 33A and 33B.

THE COURT: ~/hy don't we do that just for the
~.5 continuity sake in the event that there is any problem.
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1 The map then would he 33, correct? What did you say,
2 33?
3 MR. URICK: Thlrty-three.
4 THE COURT: Thirty-three A and then the
5 overlay will he 33B. Any objection from the Defense
6 with regard to 33A, the map?
7 MS. OUTIERREZ: NO. Your Honor.
8      THE COURT: And with regard to 33B, the
9 overlay?

10      MS. OUTIERREZ: Yes. For all the previous
11 listed stated, correct,
12 THE COURT: The overlay and the map will be

14

15
1 6
17

18
19

20
H
~2

~23
2 4

25 you use that phone with?

A AT&T Wireless Servic, es.
2 Q How did you obtain that phone?

A It was given to me by the company.
4 Q And did you have occasion to use that phone
5 while you were in the Battimore/Metropolltan area?
6  A  Y e s .
7    Q And have you had occasion to receive bi l l ing
8 information on that phone as a result of the calls you

' 9 may have received or made in the Bahimore/Met~opohtan.
to region?
1 1  A  Y e s .
1 2 Q Now, in the course of your for the AT&T
13 Wireless Corporation. have you had occasion to test the
14 pex forraano~ of Nokia phones on the AT&T wi,:eless
15 network in the Baltia~ore region?
16      MS. GlYrlERREZ: Objection.
17      THE COURT: Ovcrtll led. You may answer it.
18 And your objection is noted for the record. You may
19 continue.
2 0       M R .  W A R A N O W I T Z :  Ye s .
21        BY MR. URICK:

22  Q  Wha t  sons  o f  t es t s  do  you  pe r fo rm on  Nok ia
23 phones?
2 4 MS. CRrnERREZ: Objection.
2 5 THE COURT: Overruled. At this point the
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argument you previously made will be incorporated
herein by reference and is overraled.      .:

3      MS. GLrrIERREZ: Thank you, Your Honor. May I
4 have a continuing objection?
5      THE COURT: Very well. You may continue.
6      MR. WARANOWITZ: We monitored the Nnkia --

I 7 the massive Nokia phones in our network statisticali),.
8 We also use it in test mode. The Nokia phone has a
9 test phone in it that you can enable that will test us

10 what cell site you were on and what frequency you're
12 on, So, we were able to compare the performance of the
12 Nolda phone versus other phenes in our network.

13 accepted as evidence at this time.
(State's Exhibit No. 33A &
33B, previously marked for
identification, will be received
into evidence.)

BY MR. UR2CK:

13     MS. GUTIERREZ: Objection. Move to strike.
t4 He's not responding to the question.
15      THE COURT: Overruled. You may continue.
16      BY MR. UILICK:
17 Q How often do you conduct these sorts of tests
18 on Nokia phones?

Q Mr. Waranowitz, do you have a Nokia phone?
MR. WARANOWITZ:

A NO, not currently.
Q Have you ever had a Nokia phone?
A Yes, I have.
Q And what -- what celhilar phone system did

1 9       M R .  WA R A N O W I T Z :

20 A Usually once when we first get the phone. We
21 monitor it over a period of time.
22 Q How many phones have you done this to?
23 A I've used my own phone and I monitor phones
24 used by the customers in our network.
25 Q And about how many customer's phones have you
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monitored?
A Hundreds of thousands.
Q And what sorts of factors have you found

4 effect the performance of the Nokia phones on the AT&T
; Wireless network?

6 A If a found was dropped it will have problems,
7 physically dropped on the floor and broken, we found a

few of those. But we have not found any significant
9 problems with the Nokia 6160.

10 Q What sort of factors might effect their
II performance though?
12 A Poor antennas, problems with the batteries.
13 Q How would these problems be appearing?
14 A When we monitor the network that phone number
15 or rather that phone shows up in our statistics with
16 high dropped calls. And what I mean by dropped ca!l is
17 tho call gets disconnected in the middle of a call.
18 Q And would the customer be aware of that
19 factor7
2O A Sometimes~ yes.
21 Q What other effects on performance might these
22 factors have?
23 A Voice quality. If you have a poor antenna
24 your phone is going to see the site at a lower signal
25 strength which distorts the phone quality, the voice
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t quality. It makes it sound warbley.
2 Q Axe there any variables in performance over
3 different makes of Nokia phones?
4  A  Y e s .

5 Q And what performance -- what -- how might
6 these factors effnet performance?
7 A Different makes of different Nokia phones.
8 appear to perform differently. I have not tested
9 anything other then a Nokia 6160.
tO Q And what effects might these have on -- in
I1 telTtlS of relating to the network?
t2 A Our network performance shows higher dropped
t3 calls if we have a lot of dropped calls -- if we have a
14 lot of poor performing phones.
15 MR. URICK: At this time would offer the
16 witness for his expertise in the performance of Nokia
17 phones on the AT&T wireless network.
18     MS. OUTIERREZ: Objection.
19     THE COURT: Counsel, may I see you at the
20 bench. Sorry.

(Counsel approached the bench and following
22 ensued:)
23      THE COURT: Can you proffer what the purpose
24 of offering him as an expert at this point with regard
25 to any additional questions you intend to ask?
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MR. URICK: I thought you wanted rae to do

2 that before I asked the question so that I could get --
3      THE COURT: Which questions are tbe~,?
4      MR. URICK: Based on your expertise and
5 training would a properly functioning Nokia phone
6 respond to the system in the manner that these records
7 indicate.
8      THE COURT: Okay. You're going to,make an.
9 objection to that question, are you not?

10      MS. OUTIERRFI: Yes, for all the preyious
11 articulate reasons and I would state --
12      THE COURT: Before you go any farther, Ms.
13 Gutierrez I just have a question and this may be
14 dispositivo of this.whale issue. The phone that was
IS tested by this witness, the one that he has indicated
16 that he has expertise one is a Noki~t 6160. Is that the
17 same model of the phone that the Defendant had?
18      THE COURT: His expertise is not as to all

i19 phones. He's already indicated that different phones
z0 perform different ways and the only Nokla be's an
II expert on and has tested is the Nokia 6160.

MR. URICK: That's what dfis is.
2 3       T H E  C O U R T:  A N o k i a  6 1 6 0 7
24      tvnt. URICK: Yes.
25 THE COURT: Very well. And you're going to
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1 askthen that  he he qual ified,  ffyoure-ask the
2 qt~stion for his expertise 1 wig overrule the
3 objection for the -- you can leave it apart, I don't
4 think it matters because you don't have it on, but for

5 the purposes of this objection as asked the objection
6 is sustained. You can rephrase your qtmstion and offer
7 him as an exp~rt with regard to the 6160 and it will he
8 overruled.
9      MR. URICK: ' l ] laBk yOU.

l0      THE COURT: And I  would also note he did
11 reiterate each time you asked the question specifically
2 model 6160, yes the Nokia, 6160 which is why my -- I 'm

13 not will ing to find him as an expert as to all Nokia
14 phones because frankly I haw no idea how many there
15 axe and he's already said the performaalce varies from
16 phone to phone.
17 MR. UlUCK: Thank you very much.
18     THE COURT: All right.
19 MS. ~UTmm~Z: Well, Judge -
20      THE COURT: ~ nloment. Something we want to
21 plaoe on the record.
2 2 MS, GUTIERREZ: Yes, Judge becau~ I'm now

23 unclear. Is he now being offewxl as an expert in that
24 particular model as to how it would perform because he
i25 is only testified as to what he does with it. He

Page 37 - Page 40
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t monitors the network, that they statistically monitor
2 phones. He hasn't testified as to doing any testing
3 much less any testing in regard to performance such as
4 which they wish to intimate, i.e. Would that phone
5 make or receive or.see a certain signal strength from a
6 certain cell site, would it be capable of performlng?
7 What he testified to --
8      THE COURT: Would you like to voir dire tbe
9 witness on that issue?

lo      MS. OUTIERREZ: NO, Judge I don't think
11 that's necessary, I guess I'm stating for the record.
12 There is nothing in evidence to support any expertise
t3 as to testing the phone for anything relevant much less
14 testing it for anything. His only testimony is that
15 they've observed a high number of dropped calls, that
t6 they have a lot of poor performing phone, not
17 specifically Nokia phone, but --
18      THE COURT: Or specifically this phone.
19      MS. GUTIERREZ: Or specifically any phone.
20 But that that doesn't stand to qualify him as any
21 SpeCific exleert on anything. You know, be said they've
22 monitored statistically, whatever that means, you know
23 doesn't establish an expertise in establishing even a
24 base line of performance on this model phone or any
25 phone to say, well we monitor it statistically. We
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don't even know what that means. That's not
establishing an expertise in monitoring or testing the
performance thereof of any phone.

4 THE COURT: Mr. Urick,  state again the
5 expertise that you're offering him so that I can
6 address Ms. Gutierrez's point.
7 MR. URICK: We're offering from his expertise
8 in the performance of the Nokia 6160 phorm on tim AT&T
9 wireless network.

I 0 THE COURT: In the performance of the --

1 1 MR.  URICg :  I n  t he  Balt imore/Metropol i tan
12 area.
13 THE COURT: Nokia 6160 on the AT&T network
14 system, correct?
1 5        M R .  U R I C K :  Y e s .

16      THE COURT: All right. Very well, you may
17 step back. Thank you very much, Counsel.
18      (Counsel returned to the trial tables and
19 the followingensued:)

2 0 THE COURT: Over objection by Counsel that
II will be noted for the record the witness will be
12 accepted as an expert in the performance of the Nokia
!3 6160 on the AT&T network system. Mr. Urick, you may
24 ask your next question.
25      MR. URICK: Thank you, Yonr Honor. At
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l this time with the Court's penmssion I would like to
2 approach the witness and show him what's already in
3 evidence as State's Exhibit 30 from the Defendant.

' 4 THE COURT; Yes, you may,
5 Ely MR. UPdCK:
6 Q Can you take a few seconds and examine that
7 please?
8 THE COURT: While be's examining that piece
9 of equipment, may I see Counsel at the bench please?

10      (Court Mars other mar'mrs, the case resumes
11 as follows:)
t2     THE COURT: All right. VejtT well.
13      BY MR. UPdCK:
14 Q Have yo had a chance to examine the exhibit?
15      MR. WARANOW1TZ:
t6 A Yes,  I  have, . .

1,17 Q And can you ldentlfy that type of mode of
18 cell phone?
19 A This is a Nolda 6160 photo.
20 Q 'Now, yesterday we had you testifying
Zl concerning a test that you made at the Gateway Terrace
Z2 location, the Gelston Park hieation and the Lincoln
z3 Park location to determine if it was possible for the
24 system to respond in a particular way. Based on your
25 experience with using the Nokia phone personally and
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I through testing it with -- as part of your dnties with
2 the AT&T witless network, are you able to form an
3 opinion whether or not a properly functioning Nohia
4 6160 phone would he capable of interacting with the
5 AT&T wireless network in the same way as you described
6 yesterday?
7 A Yes.
8 MS. GUTIERREZ: Objection.
9 THE COURT: Overruled.

1 0 B Y  M R .  U R I C K :

I 1 Q And what is that opinion?
12 MR. WA RANOWI'VZ:
13 A The opinion is that the Nokla 6160 is
t4 equivalent to the test phone that we used in the test.
15      THE COURT: I'm SOn3', 1 couldn't hear that.
16      MR. WARANOWITZ: The Nokia 6160 appears to
17 perform equally to the Erickson test phone that we used
18 in the test.
19       BY MR. URICK:
20 Q And if in fact it did interact in that manner
21 would the computer cell phone records record that
22 interaction in the same way as in State's Exhibit 34?
2 3        M R .  W A R A N O W I T Z ;

2 4  A  Ye s .
25      MR. URICK: Witness with the Defense.
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! THE COURT: You may proceed, Ms. Gutier-e~z,
2 MS. GLrHERREZ: Thank you, Your Honor.
3 CROSS EXAMINATION
4 BY MS. GIYrIERREZ:

5 Q Mr. Waranowitz, would you step down off the
6 witness stand?
7      THE COURT: Yes,  you may follow her lead.
8        BY MS.  OOTIERREZ:
9 Q Now, this Exhibit 33A and B, both the map and

10 the colored overlay are exhibits that you prepared,
I 1 correct?
12      MR. WARANOWITZ:
1 3  A  Y e s .
14 Q The underlaying map was from geological
15 survey map service?
1 6  A  Y e S .
17 Q And that map indicates in many places the
IS names of roads, dces it not? And directions of roads?
1 9  A  Y e s .
20 Q And names of neighborhoods?
2 1  A  Y e s .
22 Q And you didn't put any of that on there.
23 that's already on there, correct?
24  A That  is  correct .
25 Q Now, the overlay is prepared on a clear see
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I through sheet of transparent plastic, is it not?
2  A  Y e s .
3 Q And the areas where that transparent plastic
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I step back for a minute, sir and discussed yesterday
2 State's Exhibit 43B as a demonstration that you
3 prepared to show us how the coverage area sites, the A,
4 B and C sites that emanate from a cell site should
s appear, correct?
6  A Y e s .
7 Q And you drew this, con~zt?
8     A  Y e s ,
9 Q This doesn't appear somewhere naturally, you

IO drew it?
1 1  A  C o r r e c t .
12 Q All right. And what you've described -- and
13 this is how ideally a cell site coverage area should
14 appear, correct?
15 A Yes, it's symbolic of that.
16 Q It)s symbolic of that. Now, ifyouwould
17 step back and look at, you have listed one, two, three,
18 four, five, six, seven coil site numl~'rs on this cover
19 overlay, have you not?
2 0  A  Y e s .
21 Q And you drew in dioso cell site numhers, did
22 you not?
23 A I drew in the numbers.
24 Q And you're the one that dnterlulned what would
25 be the outlines of any particular color, did you not?
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I A NO, that was generated by the computer.
2 Q So, and the computer generated those ~)ntlines
3 based on information about the boundaries of the

4 is colored is what you did, correct?
5  A  Y e s .
6 Q And there are various colors on there, are
7 they not?
S  A  Ye s .
9 Q And sometimes the colors are repeated?

I 0  A  Ye s .
11 Q And the repeats in fact appear all over the
12 map?
13  A Cor rec t .

4 specific sector that emanates from a specific cell
5 site, correct?
6 A Could you ( inaudib le)
7 Q The computer didn't decide what the coverage
S sites should look like, did it?
9  A Ye s .  i t  d i d .

10 Q The computer didn't decide what the
11 boundaries of the coverage area was, did it?
12  A Yes ,  i t  d id .
13 Q The computer merely generated what

14 Q And there's no independent, significance to
15 the colors, are there?
16 A There are not unique colors, unique cell
17 sites, yes.

18 Q For instance, the blue doesn't mean something
19 special because it's blue, does it?
2 0  A  C o r r e c t .
21 Q Or what you called orange here in the middle
22 doesn't have some special significance because it's
23 orange, fight?
2 4  A R i g h t .
25 Q Now, you showed us again, if you could just

14 information was in it, cermet?
1 5  A  Ye s .
16 Q The computer doesn't decide that ~re all
17 cell sites ideally should look like the neat little
18 circles that you've drawn, does it?
19 A "Wheat I drew these at?
20 Q Yes, IVh'. Waraoowitz. On your drawing which
21 you made which was computer assisted. You indicated
22 that ideally the A, B and C sectors are exactly alike
23 just in different locations, did you not?
2 4  A  Y e s .

25 Q The area that they cover is exactly the same
Pave 45 - Pave 4g
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1 for each fl~rce sectors, is it not?
2  A  Y e s .
3 Q T~ro's not a single one on your Exhibit 33B
4 that looks like your ideal model, does it?

5  A  N o .
6 Q There's not a single one that has nice, neat
7 little circles that express the coverage a~a, is
s there?
9  A  N O .

I 0 Q There's not a single one in which the
11 coverage areas A, B and Ca are the same, is them?
I 2     A  N O .
t3 Q YOU described for instance, for Mr. Uriek in
14 great detail the 653 has an A, B and C, did you not?
15  A Yes ,  I  d id .
16 Q And the A, B and C are the litde purple area

Page .'
THE COURT: Ms. Gutlermz, well, Ms.

2 Gutierrez, you've asked the question, let the witness
3 answer the question. Mr. Waranowitz, can you answe~
4 the first question? Did you decide that the map should
5 -- the overlay should go up above the map area or nott
6      MR. WARANOWITZ: The maps are slightly
7 different size and the location is to we printed this
8 out. I printed out both the overlay and the underlay
9 at the same scale and eventually rose up in-between.

1o So, where the overlay matches the map underneath it
11 covers the areas in question.
1 2      T H E  C O U R T:  O k a y.
13       BY MS.  G I I r IERREZ:
14 Q Now, on the overlay --
15      THECOURT: One moment, Ms. Gutierrez. but
16 the question is, that you see how the ove.rlay is moved

17 here right or brownish purple, right?
1 8  A 6 5 3 A .
t9 Q 653A. But I'm pointing to the right place,

'20 am I not?
2 1  A  Ye s .
22 Q And another sector and I don't remember if

17 up to the top of the map?
18       MR.  WARANOWlTZ :  Yes ,  I  unde rs tand  tha t  t he
19 di fference between them.
2 0 THE COURT: TheI~'S about - -  is  that  about an
21 inch above?
22 MR. WARANOWrVZ: Yes:

23 it's B and C is what you've deserihed as the larger
24 orange area, isn't zthat correct?
25 A That would be L653C.
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Q 63C and that B was what I would call purple

2 right there to the right of it, is it not?
3 A Yes.

Q And you would agree, sir, that the area
defined by the computer as B is far more then three
times the area defined by what you've defined as A,

7 would you not?
8 A That  is  correct .
9 Q And in fact, if you look at any of these
to there's not a single coverage sector that is the same

THE COURT: And that's the correct placement
~4 of the overlay?

2 5 MR. WARANOWITZ: Yes.
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THE COURT: VeP] well. Your next question,

2 Ms. Gufierrez.
BY MS. GUTIERREZ:

4 Q Now, the overlay, sir, has no definitions
5 that define any of the roads, does it?
6        MR.  WARANOWITZ :
7  A  N o ,  i t  d o e s  n o t ,
8  Q  I t  j u s t  h a s  a  s e r i e s  o f  l i n e s ,  c o r r e c t ?
9  A  C o n - o c t .

1 0  Q  A n d  t h o s e  l i n e s ,  s i r ,  y o u  p u t  t h e m  t h e r e ?
n as A, B and C as any cell site, is it?
12 A I'm sorry. Could you rephrase that last
13 question?
14 Q You didn't understand it?
]5 A Please ask me again.
16 Q Okay. Now, sir, you prepared this, did you
17 not?
1 8  A  Ye s .
19 Q And are you the one that taped it together so
20 that the overlay goes over the map?
2 1  A  Ye s .
22 Q And so you're the one that determined that
13 the overlay should not match the top line oftbe map,
z4 is that correct? You determined where to put the
!5 outline, didn't you?

n A No, they're part of the computer program.
12 Q The overlay has no logo on it that shoald he
13 matched up to something underneath of it, does it?
14 A Just the road maps.
15 Q Just the roads that were generated by the
16 computer, is that correct?
1 7  A Ye s .
18 Q And that was generated by information fed
19 into that computer by whom?

20 A The software is created by LCC.
21 Q So, it's software that exists in the
22 computer, correct?
2 3  A  Ye s ,
24 Q All right. Not something that your records
25 created, is that correct?
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1  A C o r r e c t .
2 Q Not something that you yourself put in the
3 computer at any given time?
4  A C o r r e c t .
5 Q But this overlay is suppose to represent, not
6 the ideal cell site coverage, but the actual cell site
7 coverage, correct,9
8  A  Y e s .
9 Q And the overlay in no way looks anywhere

t0 close to your ideal cell site coverage, does it?
[ 1  A  N o .
12 Q You can take back your seat. Now, Mr.
t3 Waranowitz, before we go any further, let me ask you a
t4 question that really concerned me that Mr. Urick didn't
t5 bother to ask. You referred to -- you were asked to do

16 this test, were you not?
1 7  A  Ye s .
18 Q You were asked by ]dm were you not?
1 9  A  Ye s .
20 Q Okay. And you met with him, didn't you?
21  A Yes .  ]  d id .
22 Q And the information you received before doing
23 anything you got from him. did you not?
2 4  A  Ye s .
25 Q You got a list of addresses, did you not?
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I A Yes.
2 Q He gave them to you, right?
3 A Yes.
4 Q You didn't of your own independent knowledge
5 know what if any significance those addresses have, did
6 you?
7  A No ,  I  d id  no t .
8 Q And you were asked to conduct a test to see
9 if it was consistent with what he thought, were you

10 not?
t l A l was asked to see if the test wold be
12 consistent with the locations and the phone records.
13 THE COURT: rm sor~, I couldn't hear the
I4 end of that.
15 MR. WARANOWITZ: I'm sorry. The test -- ]
16 was asked to demonstrate or verify or test that the
17 billing -- do the billing records correspond with the
18 cell sites and the locations.
19 THE COURT: your next question.
20      BY MS. GUTIERREZ:
21 Q Let me get this straight, Mr. Waranowitz.
22 The billing information for the AT&T wireless system
23 isn't something you're responsible for, is it?
24      MR. WARANOWlTZ:
25  A Con 'ec t .
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1 Q And it isn't soroething you have anything to
2 do with putting in information into to generate, is it?
3  A C o r r e c t .
4 Q That's done by somebody else. is it not?
5  A  Y e s .
6 Q And much of that is done by computers, Is it
7 not?
8  A I  don ' t  know.
9 Q You think all those entries ~e entered in by

10 hand?
I1  A 1  don ' t  know.
12 Q You don't know. Mr. Waranowitz, the reason
13 the billing information on a wireless includes
14 information such as the time of the call and the
15 duration of the call has to do with the way wireless
16 phones are billed differently than land based phones,
17 does it not?
18  A Cor rec t .
19 Q Often time a cellular customer is billed for
20 the minute of use, are they not?
2I A I don't know how they bill for minutes of
22 ase.-
23 Q Well, sir, you testified all day yesterday
24 and today that you're familiar because you in fact, are
25 and AT&T wireless customer, did you not?
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l  A  Y e s .
2 Q And does that information appear on your
3 bills?
4  A  Y e s .
5 Q The duration of the call?
6      THE COURT: Is that a question, Ms.
7 Gutierrez?
8 MS. Gt.rl'IERRF..Z: Yes, ma'am.
9      THE COURT: IS the duration of the call

10 appear on your bill, Mr. Waranowitz?
I l MR. WARANOWrrZ: It would, yes.
12 BY MS. GUTIERREZ:
13 Q Okay. Andyou're familiar with that because
14 you've seen it in your own bill.
15      MR. WARANOWrlZ:
1 6  A  Ye s .
17 Q And now you don't pay by the minute of ase
18 for your own phone?
19    A NO, 1 don't.
20 Q Your company pays for it, right?
21 A That  is  correct .
22 Q So, you're not concerned with verifying
23 aecoraey of any information that might appear on your
24 bill, are you?
2 5  A  N o .
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I Q You don' t  have to cheek your b i l l  to see i f

2 they counted up your minutes of  use cost ly?
3  A N O ,  I  d o n ' t  d o  t h a t .
4 Q You don't have to carefully check the
5 accuracy of  any informat ion regarding the t ime of  the .
6 call, do you?
7  A  N o .

8 Q You wouldn' t  be con(tamed for  b i l l ing

9 proposes if there appeared because some computer
l0 somewhere or some person somvwhere made a mistake in
I l entry as to that information, are you?
12 A No, I  don' t  handle bi l l ing.
t3 Q I  d ldn' t  ask you that ,  s i r.  I 'm asking you
14 about your own phone bill.
1 5     A  N o .
1 6 Q You don' t  enter  any informat ion that
17 generates your own phone bill, do you?
1 8  A  N o .  I  d o  n o t .  '

1 9 Q No, and because you don't pay for it l ike the
20 rest of us because it 's provided by your company,
21 you're not eoneern~l in regard to how much you pay,
22 whether or not that information is accurate or not, are
23 you?
2 4     A  N o .
2 5 MS. GUI1ERREZ: Can I have State's Exhibit
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34?

2 MR. UKICK: I believe that's the exhibit over
here.

THE COURT: Actually, it's the chart, but
there is a I believe a blank copy of that.

6 MS. OUTIERREZ: I thought that there was a
7 record.
8 THE COURT: No, I don't believe that it was
9 ever generated.

l0      BY MS. OLrlTERREZ:
I 1 Q I would like you to step off, sir and come
]2 look at 34.
13 THE COURT: You may.
14      BY MS. GUTIERREZ:
15 Q You were asked to review this yesterday, were
16 you not?
17      MR. WARANOWITZ:
1 8  A Ye s .
19 Q And before yesterday you've reviewed this
20 before, have you not?
2 1  A  Ye s .
22 Q You are familiar with the information in it,
23 were you not?
24    A Yes.
25 Q In regard to the columns in the far right
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I side, sir, you were asked to idemify whether or not
2 those numbers correctly stated cell sites?
3 A I recognize the cell site.
4 Q Okay. And because you've looked at it
5 before, correct?
6  A  Ye s .
7 Q And you knew that every single entry in thin
8 column was a cell site with which you were familiar?
9  A C o r r e c t .

lO Q Didyounot? Now, the address column, sir.
11 you didn't fill that in, did you?
12 A No,  I  d id not .
13 Q And, sir, we spoke a minute ago about you
14 wel~ provided addresses by Mr. Uriek, do you recall
15 that?
1 6  A  Ye s .
17 Q One of the addresses that you wer~ provided
18 was 1208 Maeado Road, Street whatever, was it not?
1 9  A Ye s .
20 Q ,Now, 1208 Macado doesn't appear in this
21 column, does it?
22 A NO, it does not.
23 Q No, and 120g Maeado is not the address of a
24 cell site, is it?
2 5  A  N O .

Page 6£
Q And the address of a cell site as you've

2 explained to us is t~ address of the owner of the
property, correct?

A Correct.
Q So, now the address -- the photos that you

6 were asked to look at were the antennas on top of the
7 building that defined as what you and we people you
8 worked with called the Social Security building,
9 correct?

l 0  A  Y e s .
11 Q Are you familiar with that eomplex that
12 actually fronts on Security Boulevard?
13 A I'm familiar with the oomplex.
14 Q Are youaware that there's a oomplex, a
15 Social Security buildings?
1 6  A  Ye s .
17 Q And that in facl, the name of diat set of
18 buildings is the Social Security Administration
19 headquarters.
20    A I'm aware.
2] Q And are you aware that at that complex there
22 arc eleven separate buildings as part of the
23 headquarters of the Social Security Administration?
24 A No, I wasn't aware of that.
25 Q And that all of those buildings are owned by
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I the Federal Go~t, the United States Oovermma~t.
2 A No,  I  d idn ' t  know that .
3 Q And are you aware that there is not a single
4 adch~ss that applies to all of eleven buildings?
5 A I am not aware of that.
6 Q The building that you identified in the
7 picture though is what you and your colleagues called
8 the Social Security building, correct?
9 A That  is  correct .

10 Q You of course couldn't tell us which of the
tl eleven buildings is the one that you and your
12 colleagues have designated by your own name for it,
t3 could you?
[4 A I've identified a building (inaudible)

THE COURT: I'm sorry. Walt a minute, sir.
16 You've got to -- you have to understand this is a
17 recording device and the mies pick up what you're
t8 saying and record it, so if you speak softly I can't
19 hear and I bet the ndcs not picking up what you're
20 saying. So I need you to keep your voice up. Now, she
Zl asked you about how you could identify that building
Z2 and your answer is?

MR. WARANOWrTZ: I could identify it by the
24 AT&T equipment on the roof of the building.
15 THECOURT: Very well. Your next question.
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BY MS. OUTIERREZ:

2 Q But you, sir, couldn't differentiate that
3 building if you couldn't see the antennas from the
4 other ten buildings as part of the complex?

MR. WARANOWITZ:
6 A I'm sorry. Rephrase that again.
7 Q Sir, you could not differentiate that
8 building without seeing the antennas from the other ten
9 buildings in the complex, could you?

1 0  A N O .
11 Q Now, and, sir, could you tell us without
12 seeing the antenna what the street'address of the
13 building that contains the antennas that you tell us
14 you could recognize is?
15 A I don't know exactly.
16 Q Now, while you're still up here and then l'll
17 let you sit down. Let me ask you about odicr addresses
18 that Mr. Urick gave you to conduct your test. One of
19 those was Rolling Road at 170, was it not?
2 0  A  Ye s .
21 Q And Rolling Road at 170 doesn't appear in
22 this column, does it?
23 A No, just the map.
24 Q Another address that you had given was
25 Security Square Mall, correct?
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A Cor rec t .

2 Q And are you aware of  the street  address of
3 that mall?
4  A  N o ,  I  a m  n o t .
5 Q No, and Secer i ty  Square Mal l  doesn' t  appear
6 here, does it?
7     A No ,  i t  does  no t .
8    Q And the 4703 Gateway Terrace address that you
9 were both told about and taken to, were you not~?

10    A I'm sorry, say again.
11 Q The 4703 Gateway Terence, the address that
12 Mr. Urick questioned you about extensively just moments
13 ago, do you recall that?
1 4  A Ye s .
15 Q And that does'n't appear in this column, does
t6 it?
17 A No, it does not.
18 Q And the Lincoln park, what you refcrred to
19 burial site. does that have an address?
20 A No, it does not.
21 Q And incidentally you went there, did you not?
22 A 1 was taken tlmre, yes.
23 Q You were taken there by Mr. Urick?
24 A 1 was taken by Ms. Murphy.
25    Q Okay. And you wexe shown a location,
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1 correct?
2  A  Y e s . . )

3 Q And you were told information about that.
4 location, were you not?
5  A A l i n le  h i t ,  yes .
6 Q And that location, sir, was located a good
7 distance from the road, was it not?
8 A No, it was right off the road.
9 Q Right off the road. Could you tell us the

10 distance off the road that you were shown and told a
11 body had been buried?
12 A I was told that the body was buried hehind
t3 the concrete barriers.
14 Q And you saw those concrete barriers, did you
t5 not?
t6  A Yes ,  I  d id .
17 Q Were you actually taken into the wood and
18 shown an exact spot and told this is where a body was
19 buried?
2 0  A  N o .
22 Q So, you were just taken up to the area that
22 surrounded by concrete barriers?
2 3  A  Ye s ,
24 Q We call them Jersey walls or the construction
25 industry calls them Jersey walls, are you aware of
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1 that?
2 A Yes, .Jersey walls.
3 Q Okay. And you were taken there and then you
4 said the body was buried behind here, correct?
5  A C o r r e c t .
6 Q And you weren't taken over those concrete
7 barriers, were you?

A No+ I was not.
9 Q There wasn't any ready way to get over the

l0 concrete barriers without climbing over them, was
L I diere?
12 A NO, I don't remember.
L3 Q You weren't taken to a place, were you?

1 4     A I ~ m  S O I Ty,
15 Q You weren't taken to a place, were you?
16 A I was taken to that location.
17 Q Where the Jersey wails arc.
1 8  A  Y e s .
19 Q And the Jersey walls are located immediately
20 adjacent to the road, are they not?
2 1  A  Y e s .
2 2 Q And that's where you were then said, what was
23 said m you was that the body was buried beyond here,
24 is that correct?

A That is my understanding.
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Q And, sir, did you explore the terrain beyond

2 the Jersey walls?
3  AA No ,  1  d id  r i o t .
4 Q You could have if you wanted to, couldn't you
5 have?
6  A  Y e s .
7 Q Nobody stopped you from exploring, did they?

A N O .
9 Q And were you taken anywhere from that place
IO that led you to the edge of stream?
I I  A  N o .
12 Q Or were you told that a stream meandered back
13 there behind the Jersey wall?
1 4  A  N o .
15 Q And the body wasn't there when you did this,
16 was it?
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Page 65

Q Butyou don't romeanber thodate, sir. Your |
2 definition of fall, sir, includes October? [

A Ye s .
4 " Q And ]%vember?

A Yes.
Q And parts of December?
A ]rm not  St t rO.

8      THE COURT: I'm sorry, I couldn't hear you.
9       MR.  WARANOWlTZ :  I 'm  not  sure.
10       BY MS. GUTIERREZ:

Q But t could, couldit nor?
12       MR.  WARANOWlTZ :
is A It might be.
I 4 Q And parte of September, correct?
1 5  A Ye s .
16 Q And your test could have occur~d because you
17 don't rccail sometime at the end of Scp~mber?
18 A I don't remember tbe exact date.
t 9 Q Well, my question, sir, could it occur
2o somct~ at the end of September?
2 1  A  Y e s .
2 2 Q Any day in October?

A Yes.
Q Any day in November?
A Yes,

17
18
19

Z0
H

2 2
2 3
2 4

25 the date.

A No, it was not.
Q This pan of this test that you tell us about

:ou conducted in the fall, did you not?
A Yes.
Q The exact date?
A I don't remember the exact date.
Q And you didn't write it down?
A I wrote it down somewhere, I don't remember

page 68
Q And perhaps, but not necessarily a day in

2 early December, is that correct?
3  A  I t ' s  p o s s i b l e .
4 Q And that right now you don't recall the date
5 tiffs test occurred?
6  A No ,  I  do  no t  reca l l  t he  da te  the  tes t
7 oecuned.
8 Q And you may have wr i t ten i t  down, but  you
9 didn't bring any of that matedai with you?

A  N o .

Q And oil the day whenever it was during any of
you always accompanied

13 by Ms. Mm2ahy or Mr. Uriek?
A I'm sorry, could you ask that again?
Q On whatever day it may haw been sornstirnc

during the month of September, October, November or
December that you conducted the test about which you've
testified, sir, were you always accompanied?

19 A By Ms. Murphy.
20 Q By Ms. Murphy. So, any address that you were
21 asked to conduct a test on was given to you by her?
2 2  A  Y e s .
2 3  Q  A n d - -
24      THE COURT: Ms. Gutierrez, may the witness
25 rstum to the witness stand?
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1     MS. GUTIERREZ: I'm just going to finish
2 these. I have a couple more addresses.
3    THE COURT: With regard to tbe Exhibit 342
4      BY MS. GLrrmRR~: Yes.
5 Q In regard to the address column, sir, you
6 were also given an address of Briar Cliff Road, were
7 you not?
8 MR. WARANOWrTZ:
9 A I don't recall that address.

l 0 Q Well, did you speak to Mr. Murphy -- Ms.
i I Murphy and Mr. Uriek after you conducted the test?

1 2 A Yes,
1 3 Q And did you give tbem a report of your
14 findings?
1 5  A  N o .

1 6  Q  Yo u  d i d n ' t  r e p o r t  y o u r  fi n d i n g s  t o  t h e m ?
17 A I verbally gave Ms. Murphy my readings as we
18 conducted the test.
19 Q Okay. So, youdon't cousider that tobca
20 report?
21 A (inaudible) reports.
2 2  Q  A n d - -
23      THE COURT: MS. Outierrez, I'm going to ask
24 tile witness -- you may return to the witness stand and
25 at which time you need him to return to the --

Page 70
MS. OUTIERREZ: Okay. Thank you, Judge.
THE COURT: To the exhibit then we'll have
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1 addresses they asked you m test about, would you not?
2  A  Y e s .

3 Q And  i f  B r i a r  C l i f f  Road  were  i n  t be  l i s t  t ha t
4 they told me about that would not be a sin-prise to you,
5 would it?
6 A I'm sorry, could you ask that again?
7 Q If Briar Cliff Rusd, tbe address you don't
8 remember appeared in thak list to me about.tbe
9 addresses they asked you to test that would not be a

10 surprise to you, would it?
11 A If that address was given to me.
12 Q You just can't remember whether it was, can
13 you?
t4 A I don't remember exactly where it was.
15 Q If it appea~c4 in thair list it would be fair
16 to say that it was among the addresses that they gave
17 you, wouldit not?
1 8  A  Y e s .

19 Q And Briar Cliff Road, any number on Brlar
20 Cliff Road doesn't appear in this column, does it?
2!  A No,  i t  does not .
22 Q Best Buy, whatever it's address or location
23 is, that also doesn't appear as an address, does it?
2 4  A  N o .
25 Q I70, Interstate 70 park and Ride doesn't
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I appear on the address column anywhere, does it?
2     A  N O .                                    ' .

3 him do that.
4      BY MS. OUTIEP, REZ:
5 Q Would you be surprised, sir --
6      THE COURT: Ms, Gutierrcz, if you could
7 rct t l rn to the t r ia l  table or --

8     MS. OUTIERREZ: Well, I need to focus on
9 this. Thank you.

10      THE COURT: All right. If you're going to
11 use that exhibit.
1 2 BY MS. GUT[ERREZ:

3 Q And Crosby, if that's a slreet, road or lane;
4 whatever at Interstate 695, it doesn't appear anywhere
5 in this address list, does it?
6  A  N o .
5' Q Route 40 and Cooks Lane up to Forest park
8 doesn't appear on this, does it?
9  A  N o .

Q And West Hill doesn't appear, does it?
I I A  N o .
12 Q And Forest park/Park and Ride, it's nowhere

13 Q Would you surprised, sir, that Ms. Murphy or
14 Mr. Urick reported to me what the results of your
15 findings were in regard to specific addresses?
16        MR.  WARANOWITZ :
17 A 1 am not surprised.
18 Q And if tbey did so you of course would have
19 expected them to be accurate as to the addresses,
20 correct?
2 1  A  Y e s .
22 Q Aed that wouldn't be a surprise to you, would
23 i t?
2 4  A  N o .
25 Q You'd expect them to accurately tell me what

I13 in this column, isn't it?
1 4  A  N o .
t5 Q It's not tbe address of a eell site, is it?
t6  A No ,  i t  i s  no t .
t7 Q For0st park, four bloeks usst, whatever
t8 direction that may be of Security Boulevard is not an
t9 address that appears here, is it?

A No, it is not.
Q And Gelston Park, west of Rolling Road

doesn't appear in this column, does it?
A No.

24 Q And Woodlawn High School doesn't appear in
this column, is it?
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ANO.

2 Q Tbe address of Woodlawn High School doeen't
appear in this column, does it?

A No.
Q YOU are aware, sir, that Woodlawn High School

is around the corner from the headquarters of the
Social Seourity Administration, are you not?

A Yes.
9 Q And you're aware, sir, based on yoor own

I0 report that Woodlawn High School in your words would
tl trigger 65L, 651A, are you not?
1 2  A  C o r r e c t .

13 Q And L651A is wr/tten on this exhibit tat you
14 prepared in the middle of three differing areas
t5 outlined in different colors, are you not?

1 6 A C o r r e c t .
17 Q And the high school is the pink A, B or C?
18 A The pink would he C.
19 Q And the orange, would that he a correct
20 designation of that color?
21 A That would he sectur A.
22 Q That would he A and the purple and I note a
23 differem color purple then what you described as
24 purple 653. that would he B?
25 A That would be sector B, correct.
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Q And it would he fair to say, sir, that those

2 areas by those three colors all cover different sizes
of geography, would it not?

A Ye s .
Q And you would expect, Sir. Woodlawn High

6 School to be within one of those boundaries, would you
7 not?
8  A  C o r r e c t .
9 Q And because it would tugger that cell site,

to you'd expect it to be there, correct?
t l  A  Y e s .

12 Q As 651A appears on th/s map, does it not?
1 3  A  Y e s .
14 Q And the address in the column listed as

addresses for 651A is 1500 Woodlawn Drive, is it not?
1 6  A  C o r r e c t .
17 Q And that's the cell site that you've
18 indicated to us that you triggered for the antenna on
19 top of the Social Security building, would it not?
2 O  A Ye s .
21 Q And you are aware, Sir, that the building
22 faces Security Boulevard, are you not?
2 3 A  Ye s .

Q And you aware, Sir, that Security Boulevard
is a separate and distinct street then Rolling Road?

l  A  C e r m e t .
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12 Q NOW, Sir, you were asked a lot of questions
3 about these maps that you say. again your computer
4 generated Siate's Exhibit 44 and 45?
5  A  Y e s .
6 Q And one of them, I don't recall which. Sir.
7 perhaps if you look at my copy you could tell us,
8 designates Rolling Road, does it not?
9 A Rolling Road is not written on this map.

l 0 Q Well, you, Sir, testified about RollingRoad
II though, didn't you?
12 A I know that that road is Rolling Road.
13 Q And you know that from your own knowledge,
14 r ight?
1 5  A Ye s .
16 Q But the map you forwarded doesn't say Rolling
17 Road on it, does it? .
1 8  A  N o .
19 Q SO, if we aren't you we wooldn't koow that
20 Rolling Road appears on that map, would we?
21 A If yoo were familiar with die area yoo would
22 know.
23 Q If we were familiar with the area and the
24 streets without their names being printed, correct?
25  A Cor rec t .
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1 Q You also were asked about a place that
2 appears on one of these maps that you refer to as
3 G-elston Park, do you recall that?
4  A  Y e s .
5 Q Now, Gelston Park doesn't appear, it's not
6 printed on either of these maps, is it?
7 A It is not printed on these maps, no.

Q And you didn't print it in to designate it
perhaps for people who weren't familiar with that

1o location, did you?
11 A No, I did not note that in.
12 Q And tbere's - your narae d~cso't appear on
t3 this, does it?
14 A No, my name is not on there.
15 Q And there's nothing on either of these maps
16 that in fact designate all of the things that the haap
17 shows, is  there?
18 A l'm sorry. Could you ask the question again?
19 Q No. I won't bother. Gelston Park, Mr.
2o Waraoowitz also doesn't appear in the address list,
2t does it?
22    A No, it does not.
23 Q Now, let me get this straight. The cell site
24 is a location where the antenna actually exists,
25 correct?
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A CoIleCt.

2 Q So, and what you calIed the site is that
3 which emanates the signal, correct?
4  A  Y e s .
5 Q The only importance of it, why it needs a
6 nau~ is because it emmaates or receives a signal, isn't
7 i t ?
8  A  Y e s .
9 Q And the addresses you defined that as in this

t0 column is the address of essentially the property, the
H real estate on which the antenna is located, is that
12 correct?
13 A yes, that is my undarstanding.
14 Q But a cover -- well, it's not your
t5 understanding--
t6     MR. URICK: Objection.
17      BY MS. GUTIERREZ:
t8 Q You've testified to it about as an expert,
19 have you not?

THE COURT: Sustained.
BY MS. OUTIERREZ:

Q The coverage area is an area larger than the
Z3 cell site, is it not?

MR. WARANOWITZ:
2 5  A Ye s .
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1 three years ago, correct?
2  A Y e s .
3 Q Okay. Was there something hard about that
4 questions?
5      MR. URICK: Objection.
6      THE COURT: Sustained.
7      BY MR. GUTIERREZ:
8 Q Is there any reason you hesitated to answer?e*

9       MR. WARANOW1TZ:
10 A I was listening for more of the question.

Q But there's no dispute that the network is
12 relatively new, isn't that correct?
13 A Tlmt is correct.
14 Q And you told us that you were in On it from
15 the beginning, correct?
16 A From -- from before it was launched, yes.
]7 Q Okay. And by launched you mean started,
is right?
1 9  A  Ye s .
20 O Launched meant it was operational, correct?
21 A COITect .
22 Q Meaning people with phones who were
23 subscribers could use the network to make sure their
24 phone calls got to where ever it was they were calling,
25 correct?
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1 Q Whether that cell site is a separate tower or
2 placed on an existing structure, correct?
3  A  Ye s .
4 Q The coverage area in regard to 651 would
5 include all the purple area, right?
6 A Yes.
7 Q All the orange area, right?
8 A Yes.
9 Q And all the pink area, correct?

L0 A Correct.
t l Q And you would agree that that area is a
12 considerable larger geographical location than the
13 simple address of the cell site. would you not?
1 4  A  C o ~ t .
15 Q And the column marked address is only for the
16 purpose of the designating the address of the real
17 estate on which the cell site as listed is located,
18 correct?
19 A Cotxeet .
zo Q And in no way indicates that that address is
Zl the coverage area for what that cell site ideally is
22 designed to cover?
23  A Cor rec t .
24 Q Now, you were asked yesterday, Mr. Waranowitz
15 and you indicated, well this network went up two or
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1  A  Y e s .
2 Q That's the meanlng of tbe word launehlng the
3 network, correct?
4  A C o r r e o t .
5 Q And you were involved in the design, correcO
6  A  Y e s .
7 Q You weren't the only one, correct?
8  A C o r r e c t .
9 Q And you would agree because you told us
10 yesterday that oven today 25% of your time is connected
II to design, correct?
12 A CerToot .
13 Q And the design involves a process about which
14 you told us selecting your cell sites are, correct?
1 5  A  Ye s .
16 Q And in the two or three years from the first
17 time that cell sites were selected some of them have
18 been replaced, have they not?
J9 A There have been a few, yes.
20 Q And that's because whether you designed those
21 cell sites to be the optimum of cell sites, in some
22 cases it tttms out that your design was WTOng in that
23 regard, did it not?
24 A That would not indicate that my design was
25 wrong.
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Q Your design, sir, was correct from the
2 beginning?
3 A I'm sorry, was that a qnestion?
4  Q Yes ,  i t  was .

A The network is a changing entity in terms of.
6 capacity and coverage. We design for what we need at

the 6me.
Q By coverage, sir, you're using that term in

9 the same way to describe the coverage that is expected
I0 to be gotten from the cell site signal, is it not?
t l  A  Y e s .
12 Q And by coverage, you're using that term in
t3 the stone way as we describe to encompass the actual
t4 geographical location of the A, B and C sectors,
15 correct?
16 A COlTOet.
17 Q All r ight And, sir, you weren't normally on
18 that design that sector, were you?
19 A No, I worked with team of engineers.
20 Q Engineers like you, correct?
2 1  A  Y e s .
2 2 Q All right. Now. sir, one of the things that
23 you described doing yesterday was troubleshooting, did
24 you not?

A Ye s .

Page 82
Q And troubleshooting was because there would

2 he a constant, daily borage of complaints from
3 customers, correct?

A There m'e complaints from customers, corsec:t.
5 Q That's a dally event, is it not?
6 A Yes, yes.
7 Q Even now, is it not?
8 A  Ye s .
9 Q And the complaints from customers would be
t0 connected with whether or not they could get their
11 calls through, correct?
1 2  A  Y e s .

13 Q And to thls thing that you call dropped
14 calls, con~cI?
1 5  A Ye s .

16 Q And whether or not they could hear calls
17 being made to them?
1 8  A Ye s ,
[9 Q Sufficiently to participate in the
z0 conversation, correct?
1 ]  A Cor rec t .
!2 Q Now you, sir, testified that AT&T doesn't
23 require a subscriber to use an AT&T phone, cormS?
2 4  A  C o r [ ¢ c t ,

25 Q A subscriber can use any phone they want, can
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i they not? /2 A Not  necessar i ly.
3 Q Not ne, eassarily. They have to meet certain
4 requirements, do they not?
5  A  Y e s .
6 Q It has to be a phone of sufficient quality,
7 does it not?
8 A It would have to have sufficient -- it would
9 have to have the same capability to talk to our

10 network.
11 Q Well, to talk to your network really boils
12 down to triggering a signal in your cell towers or have
13 that eel/tower being able to send a signal to it, does
14 it not?
1 5  A  C o n ' e e t ,

'16 Q Allright. And there ase many phones varying
17 in defection that meet that enpaeity, aroa/~ere not?
1 8  A  Ye s .
I9 Q Some are manufactured by Motorola correct?
2 0  A  Y e s .
21 Q Some are manufaetttmd by Eriekson, right?
2 2  A  Y e s .
23 Q Some are sold by AT&'i~ under other names of
24 the -- not manufactured by AT&T?
2 5  A  Y e s .
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Q Some are manufactured by a company by the

name of Nokia, isn't that cermet?
A Yes.

4 Q And Nokia phones just llke all other phones
5 come in varying quality, do they not?
6  h  Y e s .
7 Q And they arc varying types of phones, are
8 they not?
9  A  Y e s .

1o Q Some are cheaper, some are more expensive?
1 1  A  Y e s ,

12 Q Some have more features then Others7
1 3  A  C o r r e o L

Q And that may nm throughout a lot of tbe
I5 phones produced and manufactured by the same
16 manufacturer--
I 7  A  C o r r e c t .
18 Q Would it not? And AT&T doesn't forbid it's
19 subscribers from employing any phone as long as it can
20 receive the signal, correct?
2 1  A C o r i ~ o t .
z2 q Even if the receipt to that signal might be
z3 less slrong than another phone, is that corccot?
2 4  A  Ye s .
25 Q And I imagine, sir, based on what you've told
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1 us that the receipt of signals among phones on your
2 network still varies, correct?
3 A Yes,  i t  does.
4 Q And I'm sure, sir, that you and the we that
5 you refer to, your colleagues have an opinion as to
6 what is the best phone to be used in your network, do
7 you not?
8  A  Y e s .
9 Q And what phone is that?

10 A That would be the Nokia 6160.
11 Q Tbe6160. Tbesame phonethat youreompany
12 iSSUeS Io your engineers, correct?
1 3  A  Y e s .
14 Q Although you currently use a Motorola,
15 correct?
1 6  A  Y e s .
17 Q And, sir, in the testing that you do, sir,
t8 you're still dealing with complaints of dropped calls,
19 are you not?
2 0  A  C o r Te e t .
2l Q And some of those dropped call complaints 2 t

22 come from customers that are utilizing a Nokia phone, 22
23 are they not? 2 3

2 4
2 5
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1  A  Ye s . I
2    Q Because you can. sir, from your statistical 2

3 monitoring always determine what phone the customer is 3

4 using, can you not? 4

2 4  A  Y e s .

25 Q A Nokia 6160?
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deemed low, would it not?

2  A  Y e s .
3 Q And if they were unable to receive a signal
4 sent to them, their performance would be deemed low,
5 would it not?
6  A  Y e s .
7 Q And if a signal were sent from a cell site to
8 a poor performing phone the owner of which because of,  ¢ '
9 the poor performance could not bear. the slgnal relay

I0 would still be tripped, would it not?
11  A No,  i t  may not  be.  "
12 Q But it might be?
13  A I t  can  be .
14 Q Iteanbe. Andthat again would dependon
15 the quality of the signal, correct?
1 6  A  Y e s .
17 Q And the quality of the phone for which the
18 signal is wasn't handled, correct?
1 9  A  Y e s .
20 Q Now, that phones perform differently there is

an ideal performance for cell phones, is there not'?
A Cell phones should perform within certain

specifications.
Q Okay. And within those specifications

relates to the quality of the radio sound, does it not?
Page 88

A Yes.
Q And the ability to make a connection if.?ne

chooses to dial a number on the cell phone seeing.
communication with another 0umber?

5  A  Y e s .
6    Q Yes, and that is because your computer has
7 the capability to distinguish the signals, correct?
8  A  C o r r e c t .
9    Q Now lets ta lk about th is test  that  you do.

10 sir. Well, let me make sure, 1 forgot, go, are we
11 clear that in your experience in your own network on
12 whatever phones you've had experience with, phones
13 perform at different levels.
1 4  A  C o r r e c t .

15    Q Correct? That'satruisrn, isitnot?
16  A Cou ld  you  reph rase  tha t ' ?
17    Q Wel l ,  by saying phones perform at  d i fferent
18 levels the only performance the phones have to do is

receive or send the call, correct?

2 0  A  N o .
2t  Q Wel l ,  they have to be able to be heard.
22 correct?

2 3  A  Y e s .
2 4 Q And if they're unable to see as the term

25 you've used it, a signal their performance would be

5  A  Y e s .
6 Q Whether that number be a land llne or another
7 cell phone, correct?
8  A  C o r l ~ e t .
9 Q And the ability of the phone connection to

to remain open for however long the use wants il, correct'?
I 1  A  Y e s .
12 Q And for nothing to interfere with the call
13 correct?
1 4  A  C O I T C ~ ,
15 Q And the quality of sound in whatever
16 connection for however long to be sufficient that each
]7 party can plainly hoar each other.
1 8  A  Y e s .

19 Q And that there be no interference, correct'?
2 0  A  C o r f e o t .

21 Q But even though the ideal is to meet that
standard of performance you would agree that because
phones differ all phones don't always perform up to the
ideal, correct?

2 5  A  C O T r C e t .
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I this test, did you not?
2  A  Y e s .
3 Q And you, sir -- you w~re aware, sir, that the
4 cell phone to the records you were using still existed,
5 were you not?
6 A I'm sorry, could you say that again?
7 Q You were aware at the time you revmwed the
S records of the specific cell phone that the cell phone
9 attached -- to which that number was attached still

7
8
9

I 0
I1
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Q VCheth~r it was dropped during manufacture? [
A No.
Q Or packaging?
A NO.
Q Or shipping?
A Nope.
Q Or prior to sale while it sat in the store'?
A No.
Q You've never examined this phone to see if

t0 existed, were you not?
11 A I was not aware if that phone was still in
12 USe.

Q Did you ask?
14 A No, I did not.
15 Q And this phone, 6160 Nokia is a different
16 phone than your Eriekson, tight?
1 7  A  Y e s .

18 Q And your experience you believe that they
19 perform comparably, right?
2 0  A  Ye s .

it's capable of functioning, have you?
A No, ] have not.

I]2 Q Or how it aete once it's turned on, if it
13 could he turned on, have you?
14 A NO, I have not tested it.
15 Q You could have, couldn't you?
16 A .I was not a'A'are that I could.
17 Q Well, you could have though phys~eally, could
18 you have not?
19 A I could do that, yes.
20 Q 'And you could have back then, could you have

21
22

23 Q And by comparably that doesn't mean exactly
24 the salne, does it?
15 A No, it does not.

Q In an ideal way, correct'? 21 not?
A In the real world they perform comparably. 22 h 1 could have.

23 Q Back then, whatever day it was this phone
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1 Q And, sir, this phone isn't activated, is it?
2 A I don't know.
3 Q As far as looking at it, it appears to be
4 capable of functioning in an ideal way, does it not?
5 A Would do mean by that?
6 Q By looking at it you can tell it's capacity
7 for functioning, can you not?
8 A I  can not  te l l .
9 Q Well, you just told us that based on your
l0 experience a phone such as this would perform
I1 comparably to the phone you used at whatever day you
12 used it to perform what you call, ~'our origination
13 test.
1 4  A  Y e s .
[5 Q Did Ms. Murphy advise you that this phone was
16 available?
1 7  A  N o .
t8 Q And if it's not functioning, sir, it would he

19 a very simple matter to activate it. would it not?
2 0  A  Ye s ,
21 Q And you, sir, you can't tell by looking          2121
22 whether or not it was dropped anywhere?

~ 2 2

23 A No, I can not. 23
24 Q By anyone, can you? 24
25 A No.

24 call, you knew all that you told us about different
25 phones might act differcofly, did you not?
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A Yes.
Q That's not knew knowledge you've gained since

the time you did this test, is it?
4    A No, it 's not.
5 Q And you designed the test based on what Ms.
6 Murphy told you, correct?
7  A  Y e s .
8 Q You designed the test yourself, correct?
9  A  Y e s .

10 Q And you of course advised them that, well, we
I I better use the same phone since phones perform
12 differently, did you not?
1 3  A  N o ,  I  d i d  n o t
14 Q So, you of course asked where was the phone
15 attached to the mtmher, the records of which you were
16 asked to review, did you not?
17 A I  d id not  ask.
18 Q You didn't, exactly. You didn'teven suggest
I9 that?

2O A No, I did not.
Q And the phone you tested, this origination

test to which you looked at not a manual, but the how
you did it was an Erickson phone, was it not?

A Yes it was.
Q Your own Erlckson phone, was it not?
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1 A It was one of our test phones.
2 Q And the addresses from which you tested your
3 Erickson phone did not include an address listed as a
s cell site, did it?
5 A Not thin I know of.
6 Q And you, of course didn't go to any place
7 that Ms. Mtuphy didn't tell you to go, did you?
8  A  N o .
9 Q Bm when you reported the results of your

10 test to her or Mr. Urlnk you essentially gave the
11 information that at the addresses that you were asked
t2 to check, that a cell phone at any specific address
13 would trigger two different cell sites, did you not?
14 A There are two different possibilities, but
15 they would not trigger the same cell site at the same
16 time.
t7 Q Sir, I only asked you, did you report to them
t8 that a cell phone used for instance, at Rolling Road
t9 and 170, an address provided to you by Ms. Murphy
~0 triggers, with an S at the end of it, cell site L65 IC
~l or L698A, is that conect?
t 2  A  T h a t  i s  c o r r e c t .
t3 Q And, sir, you would agree that 69 --651C and
~4 that's the pink?
t 5  A  C o r r e c t .
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1 Q Correct, on -- is there a do north on this
2 map?
3 A Ye s .
4 Q Is north to the top?
5 A That is correct.
6 Q So, the pink would he the wastem edge of the
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1  A  C o r r e c t .
2 Q And during the test as you were reporting
3 ongoing results, Ms. Murphy didn't say, oht that's not
4 good enough, did she?
5 A She did not say anything like that.
6 Q Nothing like that, right'? She didn't suggest
7 to you other things that you could do, did she?
8 A N O . , '
9 Q She didn't suggest to you that there should
to be or that you should find a way to report to her that
II a certain address would only trigger one cell site, did
12 She?
13 A No, I explained --
1 4  Q  A s  t o - -
15      MS. MURPHY: Objection.
1 6       T H E  C O U R T:  S u s t a i n e d .
17        BY MS.  OOTIERREZ:

18 Q As to RoUing -- so, you explained it to her,
19 your resul ts?
20        MR.  WARANOWITZ :
2 1  A  Y e s .
22 Q As they went along.
2 3  A  Y e s .
24 Q And you recallthat in your reporting, would
25 you not? 

Page I00
l A Yes.
2 Q And you explained it to her in great d~ai,
3 did you not?
4 A I explained my results.
5 Q And you explained to her more then the simple
6 reporting of a cell phone at Rolling Road at I70

7 map, correct?
8  A  C o r r e c t .
9 Q All right. And the other cell site that it

10 could trigger would he L698A, is that correct?
I I  A Tha t  i s  co r rec t .
12 Q So, your report to them said~ well if I went

7 triggers cell site L651C or L698A, did you not?
8  A  Y e s .
9 Q Your conversation was more then that with Ms.

10 Murphy, was it not?
1 1  A  Ye s .
12 Q You answered any questions she had, did you

13 and used a cel l  phone at  th is address you to ld me about
14 ei ther i t  would put  a s ignal  over here,  correct?

1 5  A  C o r r e c t .
1 6  Q  O r  a  s i g n a l  o v e r  h e r e ,  c o r r e c t ?
1 7  A  C o r r e c t .
18  Q  And ,  i n  f ac t .  as  to  each  add ress  they  gave
19  you ,  you  repo r ted  s im i l a r l y  t ha t  i t  wou ld  t r i gge r  two

20 di fferent  cel l  s i tes,  one or  the other,  correct?
2 1  A  C o r r e c t .
2 2  Q  A n d  t h i s  w a s  a f t e r  y o u  d i d  t h e  t e s t ,  c o r r e c t ?
2 3  A N o ,  t h a t  w a s  d u r i n g  t h e  t e s t .
2 4  Q  D u r i n g  t h e  t e s t  a s  y o u  r e p o r t e d  t h e m  t o  h e r ,
25 correct?

13 not?
1 4  A  Y e s .
15 Q And that was part of your reporting and you
16 explaining the test as it went along?
1 7  A  Y e s .
t8 Q And you so repormd and explained to her
19 after each single address, did you not?
20 A I reported it at the address.
21 Q Now, sir, your map that you tell us you
22 carefully prepared doesn't indicate where Rolling Road
23 at 170 exists, does it?
24 A No,  i t  does not .
25 Q There's not a place that flags it either on



33A, the underlying map, right?
A No.
Q And certainly not on the overlay?
A NO,
Q And on the map, the address 1208 Macado isn't

flagged either?
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where it was before you testified, did you?

2 A Well, I know where it is,
3 Q That's not my question, sir. Thisisn't a

: 4 quiz.
5      MR. URICK: Objection.
6      THE COURT: MS. Gutierrez.

A  C o r r e c t ?

Q Nor is Security Square Mall?
9 A Correct.

10 Q And nor is 4703 Gateway Terrace?
t l  A  C o r r e c t .
t2 Q Or--

A Oh, I put Gateway Terraoe on there a few
t4 minutes ago.
t5 Q You put that on yesterday or this morning.

1 6 A This morning.
17 Q This morning. It wasn't on tbe map in it of
18 itself?.
19 A No.
20 Q On either A?
21 A No.
22 Q Or B?
23    A No, it was not.
24 Q And Briar Cliff Road, without an addreas,
25 that's not indicated on A or B either'?

7      BY MS, GUTIERREZ:
8 Q Did you put a designation of where Woodlawn
9 High School was --

l0       MR. WARANOW/TZ:
1 1  A  N o .
12 Q On tbe underlaying map? .
1 3  A  N o .
14 Q Did you put such a designation on the
15 overlaying--
1 6  A  N o .
17 Q You also prepared.
1 8  A  N o .

19 Q Were you ever asked to do so before today?
20    A ,No, I was Bot,
21 Q NO. Iflmayhavoamoment,  YourHonor.
22      THE COURT: Certninly..
23      MR. WARANOWlTZ: Can we take a break, Your
24 Honor?
25 ~THE COURT: pardon.
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A No.

2 Q Or Best Buy, whatever it may be located?
3 A Nope.
4 Q And Crosby, where ever that is?
5 A  N o .

6 Q And I70 Park and Ride?
7 A No.

Q Cooks Lane up to Forest Park?
A NO. 9

10 Q And Forest park, four blocks east of Security 10
It Boulevard? I I

1 2 A  N o . 1 2

13 Q Nor put Gelston Park'? 13
14 A I put Gelstnn Park on this morning. 14
1 5 Q  Y o u  p u t  i t  o n . 1 5
1 6 A That 's correct. 1 6

t7 Q It didn't appear independently on the 33A 17
18 map that you said you, yourself drew up? IS
19 A No, it did not. 19
~.0 Q And it doesn't appear on the overlay? 20
!1 A NO. 21
!2 Q Or Woodlawn High School doesn't appear on the 22

23 map? 23
24 A I'm not sure where that is. 24
25 Q You didn't make an independent designation 25
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MR. WARANOWITZ: Can we take a break?

2 THE COURT: We are going to take a break, l
may be able to finish with you. Can you give me ten
minutes?

MR. WARANOWrrZ: I can wait.
THE COURT: Is that --
MR. WARANOWITZ: Thank you, Your Honor.
THE COURT: Ms. Gutierrez, do you expect to

be any longer then about ten minutes?
MS. GOTIERREZ: I do, .ludge. I'll try to

shorten it, but I do need more time.
THE COURT: That's all right. Can you come

up for scheduling pu~eses?
(Counsel approached the bench and following

ensued:)
THE COURT: Mr. Wgranowit~ Mr. Waranowitz,

you may step down and wait in the hall. What l'm
trying to engage is whether or not we would finish with
this witness on or by like 11:30, 11:20?

MS. OUTIERREZ: I don't know, Judge.
THE COURT: Okay.
MS. GUTIERREZ: I know I'm long winded. I'm

not fast.
THE COURT: NO, I'm not trying to rush you.

I'm just trying to get --
Pace 101 - Pa~e 104
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l MS. fi~RREZ: I 'm a lerr ible est imate of
2 time,
3 THE COURT: I have Counsel that would like to
4 do a postponement and -
5 MS. OWrIERItEZ: It's just that because of
6 this witness I know that I 'm not rushing with i t .  So,
7 I - -
8 THE COURT: No. You~l- not asked to.
9 MS. oLrrIERREZ: I don't think I'm going to be
to finished by then. t 0
11 THE COURT: By 11:30? 11
12 MS. OOTIERREZ: No) I don't. 12
1 3 T H E  C O U R T:  O k a y,  A l l  r i g h t . 1 3

14 MS. OUTIERREZ: So, if you want to -- 14
15 THE COURT: TO take the postponement request? 15
16 MS. GUTIERREZ: That's fine. 16
17 THE COURT: Do you have a question, issue? 17
18 MR. URICK: She wanted to know that means 18
19 we're going to take a brief break? She would like one. t 9
20 THE COURT: Yes. We all can take a brief z0

2 I  b r e a k . 2 1

22 MS. GUTIERREZ: Okay, 22
23 THE COURT: And I'I1 have Counsel -- and 1'11 !23
24 have Counsel bring up -- all right. 24
25 (Counsel returned to the trial tables and 25
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1 the following ensued:)
2 THE COURT: Ladies and gentlemen, we're going
3 to take a brief recess. Allow you to use the
4 facilities and then we'll bring you back and continue
5 with this witness. I'm going to ask at this time that 5
6 you leave your note pads face down, that you leave them 6
7 there because we're going to eorae back and resume and 7
8 contintm with testimony for just a brief time after the g

9 break. Sehedoling wise there has been a request by one 9
tO of the jurors to do some things with his job, so 10
I 1 therefore, what we're going to do is take a little I 1

12 longer lunch break then we would nohnally do to allow 12

13 that juror to he accommodated, but I'm going to ask 13
14 that you do come back with a few moments and at that 14
t5 time we'll give a better guesstimate as how the morning 15
16 will go. 16
17 At this time will you go with the Deputy Sheriff 17
18 Church who will walk you around to the jury rcom, he is l g

19 at the door. Do not discuss the testimony you've heard 19
20 this morning or any other day during the trial. Do not
21 discuss it amongst yourselves or with anyone, you have
22 not heard the entire ease yet. You can go with Deputy
23 Chief-- Deputy Church at this time.
24      (Tile jury was excused from the courtroom.)
25      THE COURT: Mr. Gilmore, you're free to leave
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2 him here because we're not going to take a break that
2 long. Counsel, if you would like to take a recess or
3 step back, use the facilities please do so. I'm going
4 to remain on -- actually, I'm going to take a brief
5 break myself, but I'm going to ask that as soon as
6 Danny Mm-cus and Lynn Stewart. the attorneys m that
7 other case arrive and the Defendant who's being brought
8 up anives we will proceed. Ms. Connelly, will,you let
9 me know when Mr. Marcus and Ms. Stewart as well as the

Defendant in the other matter arrive so that we can do
this postponement request. The Court stands iti recess.

THE CLERK: All rise.
(Brief recess.)

(Case hears other matters, ease resumes as
follows:)

(Jury not present upon reconvening.)
THE COURT: Mr. Uriak, Ms. Murphy and Ms.

Gutierrez, if you'll step back up, we can resume the
"Syed case with a few more questions and then I will
send tbe jurors to lunch aihiwing juror number two to
take care of the business be's indicated be must
acquit. I would note that we would he resmthng at
about 1:30. You're frowning.

MR. URICK: If 1 may inquire. Did the Court
anticipate finishing this witness before breaking for
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1 lunch?

2 THE COURT:  NO.  YOU have a juror as you"
3 heard that needs more then the hour lunch break in
4"order to take care of his business. What I had

suggested when we spoke tn jttror ntmaher two is that
we'd break at 11:30 so then he would have from 11:30 to,
12:30 and 12:30 to 1:30 to take care of his business.
Are you suggesting dim we break at another time?

MR.  URICK :  Yes ,  I  wou ld  request that Mr.
Waranowitz was able to revise his flight plans for
today, but that he would have to take a 3:30 flight
this afternoon. We would request that he'd be allowed
to finish his finish his testimony so that be could get
to the airport on tinx¢.

THE COURT: Arid how do yell propose that I
accommodate your juror number two?

MR. URICK: Just move it up into the
afternoon because the BC -- University -- Baltimore
City College is open to 4:30. If he goes there before

20 the hineh break or after hineh break he can still at
21 either time --
22 THE COURT: DO you know that?
23 MR. URICK: I know he didn't specify a
24 particular time that he had to be there. He just said
25 he had to he there around -- he just needed time around
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I lunch.
2 THE COURT: Perhaps we ought to ask him that
3 rather than just arbitrarily make a decision. Would
4 note that from 12:30 to two o'clock this Court sits
5 part ofa thrco judgepanel with Judge Quarles and'
6 Judge Cannon to review other cases involving
7 sentencing. So, 1 am not available although the rest
8 of you will be at lunfh I will be part of a three judge
9 panel from 12:30 to two o'clock and so we can take a

10 longer lunch break, but we'd have to accomraodate this
n Court in that fashion. That's why I suggested --

MS. GUTIERREZ: Judge, my only concern -- I'd
t3 object to further questioning tbe jury. Mr. Urick
14 again, knew this ahead of time, we didn't know. There
L5 was ample opportunity. We've already brought it to
16 this jttror's attention. I think that we are rightfully
17 concerned and not make more of it then tbere is and to
18 put tbe juror at ease as to whatever concerns the juror
19 may have. We've had a conversation with him, we've
20 inquired, we've asked and we gave him a specific
21 alternative.
22 Now, in light of what's happened in this trial is
23 not being able to move expectations all the time
24 because I think that they're unreasonable to try to
25 presume what will happen. You know, I'd object to any
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furtber questioning of tbe juror. We've already given

2 the juror a way out and, you know, reasonably I think
it is likely that if we come back at 1:30 or two that
we would finish this witness in time for him to get his
plane, but frankly, Judge that was a decision that they

6 made last Thursday when they chose not to calla witness
7 who had these constraints knowing that they were
8 calling a witness who would take forever and they made
9 that .  You know at  some point  they've got  to l ive wi th
t0 it and I would object to any further interference in
t I regard to this juror who is now counted on and as to
12 what it is ha can do.
13 THE COURT: I~. Urick, Ms. Murphy and Ms.
14 Guticttcz, this Court has attempted, l think I've bent
15 over backwards to accommodate you both with your

16 personal schedules, with the Court's schadules, with
17 the witness's schedules and I would ask in the future
18 where you arc awme of some scheduling difficulty and
19 the Court makes a special effort to accontmedate

20 someone, whether that be your witness, a j uror or
21 anyone else that you provide the Court with all the

122 information you have available, so that when I make a
23 decision I don't have to continually change it. That
24 would have been helpful this morning when I was talking
25 to the juror, even asked, do you have any other
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1 questions, but in light of that I'm going to ask that
2 the juror be -- the jury be brought back in and I will
3 speak to juror number two whether it differs to him
4 whether we break at 11:30 to 1:30 or 12:30 to 2:30.
5     (The jury returned to the courtroom.)
6      THE COURT: Juror number two, if you would
7 just step up here for just one moment. Will the rest
8 of the jurors please have a seat as you come in. With
9 the regard to the scheduling issue we just have one

10 question for you. Does it matter if you break at -- if
H we break at 11:30 versus 12:307
12      JUROR: No.
13      THE COURT: Okay. Very well, you may have a
14 seat with everyone else. We are going to continue.
15      MR. UPdCK: Can I ask the Deputy to bring the
16 wihaess in at thistime?
17      THE COURT: Yes.
18      MR. URICK: Can you ask Mr. Waranowitz to
19 step back in?

' THE COURT: Thank you. One moment. All
2J tight. You may proceed, MS. Outierrez.

BY MS. OUTIERREZ: .
23 Q Yes, Mr. Waranowltz, we were talking about
24 what has been referred to as the burial site, do you
25 recall that?
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2 MR. WARANOWITZ:
2 A Yes.
3 Q And that's where you were taken to the area
4 right off the road that a concrete Jersey wall
5 barriers, correct?
6  A  Y e s .
7 Q And, sir, you recall also that you told us
8 this morning that because of the things that might
9 effect the strength of the signal and as to how is was

10 sent or received that winter is generally a better time
11 to make a call than summer, correct?
12  A Co /Tea t .
13 Q And that seasonal difference, sir, you
14 attributed to that in winter trees that have leaves on
t5 them that fall are likely not to have leaves on them,
16 correct?
17  A Cor rec t .

I 8 Q And so, therefore the leaves couldn't be
19 interference, correct?
20  A Cor rec t .
21 Q Now, sir, when you went to that place and
22 again, to make sure, you were on the road side of the
23 Jersey wall barriers, correct?
2 4  A  Ye s .
25 Q And you were asked to conduct an origination
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1 test, were you not? I
2  A  Y e s . 2

3 Q And your origination test was essentially 3
4 causing a call to be made, correct? 4

Page I 15
Q You only know about your network?
A Yes.
Q And you are familiar with the difficalty that

your network has.for its users, arc you not?
5 A A test call.
6 Q A test call, right?

i 7 A Yes.
8 Q But a call, right?

5 A Yes.
Q And that's not a surprise to you, is it'?

7 A No. it is not.
8 Q Because the terrain in Lincoln Park ig

I  9 A Yes. 9
110 Q Meaning a call to be that would emanate from t o
11 your phone that you were using to conduct that test to 11
12 have a call go out from your phone to seek whatever 12
13 signal it would seek. correct?
1 4  .  A  C o n ' e ~ t .
15 Q Now, sir, have you ever driven through
16 Lincoln Park before?
17 A Yes,  I  have.
18 Q And. sir, you ale familiar with the road that
19 goes through there, are you not?
20 A I mn familiar with the coverage on the road,
21 yes.

22 Q No, sir. That wasn't my question.
A I am familiar with the road.

24 Q I didn't ask you about the coverage zone, 1
25 asked you, were you familiar with the road.

A Yes.
2 Q And what's the name of the road'?
3 A I'd have to look it up.
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difficult, is it not?
A Yes, it is.
Q It's difficult in fall?
A  Ye s .

13 Q It's difficult in summer?
1 4 A Ye S .
r 5  Q  I n  s p r i n g ?  .
1 6  A  Y e S .

17 Q And, in fact, it's difficult in winter, is it
18 not?
19  A Yes ,  i t  i s .
20 Q The terrain in Lincoln park goes to terrain
21 that is much, much higher than the terrain of the road
22 who's name you don't remember, is it not?
2 3  A  Y e s .
24 Q And there's a major stream or waterway that
25 rans through Lincoln park, is there not?
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1  A Y e s .
2 Q  A n d y o u ' m a w a r e t h a t t h e b a n k s o f t h e  ' :

3 waterway because the terrain is uneven is often times
4 Q SO, sir, whatever familiarity you have with
5 the road you don't recall its name?
6 A That  is  correct .
7 Q That road, however fmniliar you are with it,
8 pans the breath of Lincoln Park throughout Baltimore
9 City, does it not?

10 A I think so, yes.
11 Q And, sir, are you aware of the difficulty any
12 cell phone user has regardless of phone, regardless of
13 network of actually speaking on the phone while one is
4 in Lincoln Park?

1 5  A  Y e s ,
t6 Q And are you aware of the difficulty any cell
t7 phone user, regardless of the phone, regardless of what
18 network is utilized, has in receiving a phone call if
t9 they at the time are in Lincoln Park?

20 A I'm sorry, could you rephrase that?
21 Q You are aware, are you not, of the difficulty
22 any cell phone user no matter what cell phone is used
23 in actually or what network is utilized in actually
24 receiving a call while one is in Lincoln Park? "
25 A I don't know about other networks.

4 below what we call strict level, referring to the level
5 of the street who's name you don't remember?
6  A  Y e s .
7 Q And none of that information is a surprise to
8 you,  is  i t?
9  A  N o .

1 0 Q And notwithstanding that, your network has
11 been launched now for maybe up to three ye~s. Lincoln
12 Park as a coverage are~, it 's always been difficult,
13 has it not?
1 4  A  T h a t  i s  t r u e .

1 5  Q  A l l  y e a r  l ong?
1 6  A  Y e s .
1 7 Q Regardless of what phones people use?
1 8  A  Y e s .
1 9 Q And that that difficulty has persisted

20 whether the phone being used is the mm making the call
21 or the phone being used is the one receiving the carl

22 isn't that correct?
2 3  A  Y e s .
2 4 Q And, sir, that existed back in faU when you
25 conducted your ongination test, did it not?
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I Q Aftca" you conducted your test you reported to
2 Ms. Mmphy that a cell phone dialing out from that
3 location, meaning what you were pointed out to be the
4' burial site, would trigger either one site or another
5 site, were you not?.
s A I thought it was only one site at the burial.
7 Q And that burial site, cell site number that
s you've indicated was 6898, correct?
9  a  C o r r e c t .

Q And 689B sits where?
11 A It sits on the building called Oovins Manor.
12 Q That's an apartment complex, is it not?
13 A I think it is.
14 Q And that apartment complex I believe as
15 you've discussed before, is up near the intersection of
16 Windsor Mill Road and Forest park Avenue. is it not?
17 A Let me verify that please.
18 .Q May I note for the record, sir. that you are
19 looking through a map book, is that correct'?
20  A Yes  i t  i s .
21 Q And that map book covers what geographical
22 area?
23 A The greater Baltimore area.
24 Q Sir, Ym going to show you what's been marked
25 into evidence as Stata's Exhibit 17. That is a greater
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Baltimore area map book, is it not?

A Yes.
Q It in fact, contains this same cover as the
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1 BY MS. GUTIERREZ:
2 Q The apartment complex -- you are familiar
3 with the road, Security Boulevard. are you not?
4       MR.  WARANOW' fTZ :
5  A  Ye s .
6 Q And you are familiar that the road by the
7 name of Windsor Mill Road does not intersect the
8 Se, cufily Boulevard, arc you not?
9  A  Y e s .

10 Q You are aware that Windsor Mill Road runs at
I1 a distance in a parallel fashion to Security Boulevard,
12 a1 you not?
13 A. I don't know the extents of Windsor Mill off
!14 hand.
15 Q Windsor Mill Road is not the name of the mad
16 that yOU were on off of which your Jersey Wall barriers
17 are, is it?
18 A No, I was down in Lincoln Park.
19 Q Down in Lincoln Park and from what you know
20 of Windsor Mill Road it's up above Lincoln Park, is it
21 not?
2 2  A  Y e s  i t  i s .
2 3 Q At least on that end of it, correct?
24 A It is higher, yes.
25 Q And you are aware that north Forest Park is a
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road that is connected at one end to Security Boulevard

2 and at another end it continues to go through the
3 intersection at Windsor Mill Park, are you not?

4 one you are looking at, does it not?
5  A Yes  i t  does .
6 Q And it's page are also the same?
7  A I  d o n ' t  k n o w.
8 Q You carry that book with you?
9  A Ye s ,  i  d o .

Q As part of your job?

4 A I  t h i n k  s o .
Q And so it runs perpendicular to Security

6 Boulevard?
A Ye s .
Q And perpendicular to Windsor Mill Road?

9  A  Y e s .
10 Q And you are aware that north Forest Park

I 1 1  A  Y e s . 11
12 Q Were you able to locate places with which you
13 might not be familiar?
1 4  A  Y e s .
15 Q And you use it often, do you not?
1 6  A  Y e s .
17    Q And you're aware that you're not the only
18 person that might can3' map book with them, are you
19 not?
20      MR. URICK: Objection.
21      THE COURT: Sustained.
22       BY MS.  OUT1ERREZ:
2 3  Q  I s  t h a t  m a p  b o o k  i s s u e d  t o  y o u  b y  AT & T ?
24      MR. URICK: Objection.
25      THE COURT: Sustained.

Avenue does not run through Lincoln Park, are you not'?
12 A Pd have to check on that.
13 Q You'd have to cheek you own maps?
1 4  A  Y e s .
15 Q And could you now?
]6 A Forest Park Avenue does not appear to mn
17 through Lincoln Park.
18 Q And that's according to your knowledge,
19 correct?

2 0  A  Ye s .
21 Q A map upon which you rely almost on a daily
22 basis?
2 3 MR. URICK: Objection.
24 THE COURT: Well, Mr. Uriek, you didn't
25 object to him using the map, so why don't we have the
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t map marked as evidence since it is the map that the
2 witness is using to testify to and then we'll have in
3 evidence what it is that the witness is indicating is
4 his recollection or his information. For the record, ,
S is that the same mapthat you used during the testing
6 process that you've outlined for this Court?
7      MR. WARANOWITZ: I  believe it was.
8      THE COURT: VOW well Thank you very much.
9      MR. URICK: Do you want a State's numhex or a

10 Defense number for the exhibit?
11      THE COURT: Why don't we make a Court's
12 number and that way we have it as a Court's exhibit
13 since I'm requesting that it be placed in evidence.
t4 And if you would, Mr. Clerk, just tab the page that
13 witness was referring to so that the jurors -- or you
16 can open it to that page, either way. You may
17 continue, Ms. Gutierrez.
18      BY MS. GUTIERKEZ: Thank you. Your Honor.
19 Q Sir. before the break we spoke about a
20 location called Woodlawn High School.
21        MR.  WARANOWITZ :
2 2  A  Y e s .
23 Q And, sir, you are aware of where that is
24 located?
2 5  A  Y e s .

Page 126
t Q And that it is located on Woodlawn Drive?
2 A I'd have to verify that.
3 MS. OU"flERREZ: Can we show the witness our
4 map so that he (inaudible).
5 THE COURT: IS there an object to any of
6 this? 1 mean -- no.
7 MS. GUTLERREZ: Objection.
8 THE COURT: Good point, Ms. Outierrez. Your
9 objection is overruled. You may ask -- continue to ask

10 your questions.
11 BY MS. GUTIERREZ: Thank you.
t2 Q Can you see that, sir? Can ~,ou locate
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1  A  Y e s .
2 Q And tl3at section of Woodlawn Drive runs
3 between -- it may run further, but it at least runs
4 between Security Boulevard and Dogwood Road. does it
5 not?

A What road was that?
7 Q Dogwood, D-O-G-W-O-O-D.
8 A Right, Dogwood intersects Woodlawn Drive.
9 Q And on the other end Woodlawn Drive

10 intersects Security Boulevard, does it not'?
I t  A  Y e s .
12 Q And if one follows Dogwobd Road, one
t3 determines that it changes its name below the bridge
14 that is Forest park Avenue as it approaches the city
15 line, does one not?
t 6  A  Ye s .
17 Q And the name to which Dogwood Road changes
18 into is a road by the name of Franklintown, is it not'?
1 9  A  , Y e s .
20 Q And Franklintown is the road that you drove
21 off of which the Jersey barrier concrete walls existed
22 when Ms. Murphy took you, ~sn't that correct?
23 A I believe so, yes.
24 Q And from the map, that's not a great deal of
25 distance, is it?
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MR. UPdCK: Objection.

2 THE COURT: Overruled.
MR. WARANOW1TZ: It is not far.

4       BY MS.  OUTIERREZ:
5 Q No. And Woodlawn High School is not a

, 6 location that Ms. Murphy directed you to, was it?
7 MR. WARANOWITZ:
8 A I was taken to Woodlawn High School.
9 Q And did you do an origination test there'?

i0 A Yes.
I I Q And that was to make a call from that
12 locatign?

t3 Woodlawn Drive in the map book?
14       MR.  WARANOWlTZ :

t5 A Woodlawn Dr ive?
1 6  Q  Y e s ,  s i r .
t7 A Woodlawn High School?
18  Q Yes ,  s i r.
19
20

1 3  A  Ye s .
14 Q To determine, what if any, cell site such a
15 ealt would trigger, is that correct?
1 6  A  Ye s .
17 Q And the cell site that such a call would
18 trigger on your phone, the Erickson, on the date that

A I've located it. 19
Q Okay. And Woodlawn High School, in fact, is 20

21 on Woodiawll Drive, is it not? 21
22 A it appears to be, yes. 22
23 Q And it appears to be in your map, correct? 23
24 A Yes, 24
25 Q The same map upon which you rely, correct? 25

you did the test was what?
A It was either 651A or 651C.
Q 651A, would that be the orange'?
A Yes.
Q Or not that one, but the pink one, correct?
A ColXeCt.
Q ls that correct?
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A Correct.
2 Q Either one or the other, fight?
3 A Yes.
4 Q And, sir, the address on that cell phone
5 tower, the same cell phone tower would be the same
6 whether it was orange, right?
7  A  Y e s .
S Q Or p ink,  r ight?
9  A  Y e S .

Q The cell phone tower's address is -- what you
are referring to now is your copy of this blown up
version of State's Exhibit 34, is it not?

A Yes.
Q And the cell phone, cell site address is 1500

Woodlawn Drive, is it not?
A Yes.
Q And that same address is whether or not the

call was made by a cell phone in 65 IA, right?
A Yes.
Q Or whether.or not it was made in 65 IC, is

that correct?
A Yes.
Q And if it were made in A on your map which

you prepared it includes more than one designated
neighborhood, does it not?
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A I'm sony, could you rephrase that?
Q On your map which you prepared, if it were

3 originated from 651A, A is the orange?
4  A  Y e s .
5 Q All right. If the cell phone was located in
6 651, that area would inelude several different
7 neighborhoods, would it notx)
8 A Neighborhoods, yes.
9 Q Yes. And those neighborhoods would include
10 several different defined subdivisions and listings.of
11 different neighborhoods, would it not'?
I2      MR. UPdCK: Objection.
13      THE COURT: Do you whether that would include
14 several different neighborhoods in that area or not'?

1 several different neighborhoods, does it not?
2  A  Ye s .
3 Q Those being residential, cermet?
4 A Residential and commercial.
5 Q And commercial, but does include residential,
6 correct?
7  A  Y e s .
8 Q And includes a broader geographical range
9 then does A, does it not?

lO a Tt~ coverage dces go off tbe map.
11 Q So, in regard to what you call coverage,
12 again, you m-e referring to the coverage that one would
13 expect in an ideal situation to include an area much
14 larger than just the location of this cell site,
15 nerreot?
1 6
1 7
1 8
1 9
2 0
2 1
2 2
2 3
2 4

2 5

A Yes.
Q And the coverage area, although this he the

ideal that you drew for us to help you explain, in
reality doesn't look like this, does it?

MR. URICK: Objection.
THE COURT: Overruled.
MR. WARANOW1TZ: It doesn't look like that.

BY MS. GUTIERREZ:
Q Now, sir, in regard to the apartment building
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I that's located near the intersection of Windsor Mill
2 Road and Forest park Avenue, you call that apalyment
3 eomphix?
4      MR. WARANOWITZ:
5 A NO, we call that Govins Manor.
6 Q Okay. You recalled that one, correct'?
7  A  Y e s .
8 Q The cell site are antennas on top of the
9 apartment complex, correct?

i 0  A  Y e s .
I l Q And the apartment complex contains more than
12 one building, does it not?
13 A l  don' t  recal l .
14 Q But the antenna is on top, is it not?

15      MR. WARANOWITZ: Yes it would.
16      BY MS. OOTIERREZ:
17 Q And that would also be true --
18      THE COURT: Overruled.
19      BY MS. GUTIERREZ:
20 Q If the cell phone, your Erickson cell phone
21 were used to make a call if it had been located
22 anywhere in 651C, that's the pink, fight?
23       MR. WARANOWITZ:
2 4  A R i g h t .
25 Q And that whole area, that pink also includes

1 5  A  Ye s .
16 Q And, sir, do you recall how high, hew many
17 stories the aparmaent complex is?
18 A I  don' t  recal l .
t9 Q You didn't make a notation of that, did you?
2 0  A  N o .
21 Q And, sir, the apartment complex upon which
22 your site antennas are covers almost, in addition to
23 other areas, almost the entirety of the western edge of
24 Lincoln Park, does it not?
25  A Cor rec t .
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I Q Now that coverage area would exist whether or
2 not it actually covers, would it not?
3 A I understand your question.
4 Q Well, you and your company designate what
5 under ideal c'treumstances that cell site. wherever it
6 may he, should cover in three directions, correct?
7 A We design within consideration of the
8 terrain. We do not design to an ideal diagram that 1
9 demonstrated here.

] 0 Q And so the original design of the network
I 1 would have expected that that was the best location for
12 the site tO Cover, would it not?

a Yes.
Q And notwithstanding that hopeful expectation,

15 actual coverage, meaning receipt and sending of calls
16 throughout Lincoln Park still remains difficult, does
17 i t  not?
]8  A Yes  i t  does .
19 Q And that's because of the terrain, correct?
2 0  A  Y e S .

Q And that's in spite of your expectation that
22 a tower on an apartmeot building of some undeterminec
z3 height would provide adequate coverage for an area that
24 you knew to designated as Lincoln Park, correct?
25 A Well, we do take into consideration the
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I limitations of a cell site system.
2 Q Sir, my question was not withstanding your
3 expectation in the design of your network, that you
4 were selecting the optimum site for your cell tower to
5 receive and send cellular signals seen, to he seen by
6 all manner of cellular phones that the coverage area
7 designated was expected to cover what you so
8 designated. The difficulties in sending and receiving
9 phone calls throughout the coverage area that includes

to the designated pans of Lincoln park continue to
H problematical, do they not?
12      MR. URICK: Objection.
13 THE COURT: Sustained. You do not have to
14 answer that question and Counsel. if you would like to
15 restate it and phrase it, not in a compound fashion and
16 in a different tone the Court might consider it.
17      MS. GUTIERREZ: l appreciate that offer,
18 Judge, but 1 will pass.
19       THE COURT:  Very wel l .
20       BY MS.  GUTIERREZ:
21 Q Mr, Waranowitz, in regard to whatever
22 validity your test has, all it involved was your
23 attempt to calls to be made, lets take the Jersey wall
24 area. A call to he made from a particular location,
25 correct?
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1 " MR. WARANOWITZ:
2 A Yes.
3 Q And then your test included notating what
4 cell site tower or ell site it triggered v}hen you made
5 that call?
6  A  Y e s .

Q And that was on your Efiakson phone, correct?
A Yes.

9    Q Under circumstances of terrain or weather or
10 leaves that you didn't investigate.
11 A Yes, with an explanation.
12 Q Okay. You just showed up at the location you
13 were shown to, right?
14      MR.  URICK:  Object ion.
15      THE COURT: Objection to the last  question or
16 to the previous witness not being able to complete his
17 answer to the last -- the previous question.
18      MR. URICK: Not being able to complete his
19 answer.

20     "THECOURT: All right. First, Mr.
21 Waranowitz, you said yes with an explanation. Can ym
22 complete yourexplanation? .

MR. WARANOWITZ: Yes.
THE COURT: Go dghl  ahead.

i25      MR. WARANOWlTZ: We do not take weather into

1 consideration in our network design.
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2      BY MS. OUTIERREZ:
3 Q SO the answer to my question is yes, you
4 didn't do anything to match any conditions to any date,
5 correct?
6      MR. WARANOWlTZ:
7 A NO, I  d id not .
8 Q And you didn't even attempt to dn so, did
9 you?

10 A No, with an explanation.
11 Q And you didn't make --
12 MR. URICK: Objection.
13      THE COURT: Well, Mr. Waranowit~ one moment
14 Counsel. What is your explanation?
15 MR. WARANOWlTZ: The 689B is the strongest
16 and in most eases the only site that gets in that area
17 regardless of where you are located. Only 689B gets
18 into that burial area strong enough to make a phone
19 call.

20 THE COURT: I'm sorry, I didn't hear the end
21 of that.
22 MR. WARANOWITZ: Strong enough to make a
23 phone call.
24      THE COURT: Strong enough to make a phone
25 call. Very well, your next question.
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BY MS. GUTIERREZ:

Q So, if you can't reach that cell site you're
not able to make a cell phone call, right?

4 MR. WARANOWITZ:

A That is correct.
Q And, sir, as you've told us before, different

phone perform differently, correct?
8  A  Y e s .
9 Q And part of what that perform differently in,

I0 is related to what you have referred to is the ability
l I of tbe phone to see the signal, conect?
1 2  A  Y e s .
13 Q The seeing of the signal refers to the algnal
14 that emanates from the tower, correct?
1 5  A  Ye s .
16 Q And that varying phones of varying quality
17 would b¢ able to see or not see the phone, correct?
1 8  A  C o r r e c t .
19 Q And the difference in phones might mean that
20 at sometimes a certain phone might see a signal,
21 COITeCt ?
2 2  A  Y e s .
23 Q At other times that phone might not see the
24 same signal it was able to see at some other designated
25 time?
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1 A Time probably wouldn't be a factor.
2 Q Because tim~ isn't a factor you, of course,
3 made no effort to conduct your test when the alleged
4 calls that you were conducting this test to make an
5 opinion actually ueeurred, did you?
6 A l'm sorry, could you say that again?
7 Q You didn't attempt to construct your test
8 according to the times that your own phones records
9 indicated certain calls were made, did you?

10 A My phone records?
11      THE COURT: Mr.  Waranowitz, i f you can't
12 answer a question say, I do not ufiderstand the
13 question, I'm sorry, I can't answer the question and
14 then Counsel will rephrase the question, okay? At this
15 point I assume you can't answer the question?

16      MR. WARANOWI' fZ:  I  don't understand the
t7 question.
18      THE COURT: You don't understand the
19 question, Very well, your next question.

BY MS, OUTIERREZ:
Q Wben you reviewed tbe phone records of tbe

22 certain cellular phone, did you not?
MR, WARANOWIrZ:

A Yes.
O And you understood that those phone records
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l belonged to an AT&T wireless customer, did you not?
2  A  Y e s .
3 Q Canlsecthcfile? Ithinktbey're31.
4 Yes. Thank you. May I approach the witness?

THE COURT: Yes, you may.
6 BY MS. GUTIERREZ:

Q I'm going to show you what's already been
8 marked as State's Exhibit 31. Those are the phone
9 records that you reviewed, are they not?

1 0 MR. WARANOWITZ:
I t A They appear to be, yes.
12 Q And those phone records a.re produced for the
13 company you work for, right?
1 4  A  Y e s .
15 Q And they indicate there the phone records for
t6 a certain cell phone number, do they nc~?
1 7  A  Y e s .
IS Q And they indicate that that phone is billed
19 to an account number with tlc nmue Balial Alned, does
20 it not?
21 A This does show that.
22 Q Okay. And the ghoue number to which these
13 records refer is listed as area code, 443-253-9023,
~4 does it not?
25 A Yes i t  does.

Page 140
1 Q And attached to those pages, sir, are three
2 pages on which are listed: dates, times, duration of
3 call, are there not?
4  A  Y e s .
5 Q And you expect based on your experience for
6 tho~ records to be accurate, do you not?
7      A Yes,
8 Q And you're aware of tbese records as part of
9 the way to do your so called, origination test, were

10 you not?
1 1  a  Ye s .
12 Q And were you asked to conform your test in
13 any way to tbe times in which calls were alleged to
14 have been made?
1 5  A  T i m e .
16 Q Do you not understand that question, sir?
1 7  A  P l e a s e  r e p h r a s e  i t .

Q Were you asked by anyone to conform your
19 test, i.e., the structure, your test in a way that
20 conformed to the information concerning actual calls
21 that were made?
2 2  A  N O ,  I  w a s  n o t .
23 Q And you didn't do so, did you?
2 4  A  N O ,
25 Q And you were not asked to structure your test



Page 149
I outside of what one it expects it to perform, correct?
2  A  Y e s .
3 Q And some phones, although it may come from
4 the same manufacturer's batch and model number, some
5 phones might see a signal and otber phones might not,
6 COITOCt?
7  A C o r r e c t .
8 Q And if a phone doesn't see a signal then it
9 doesn't trigger, correct?

l O  A C o r r e c t .
11 Q And whether a phone is a good performance
12 phone or a bad performance phone doesn't add to your
J3 ability to tell where it was when it sent out a signal,
14 does it?
1 5  A  N o .
16 Q And your test can't help us with that, can
17 it? Can it?
18 A I  d isagree.
L9 Q Sir, your test -- lets deal with 651,
20 correct? And Icts us assume for the punpose of this
21 question, that the cell tower is located in the middle
12 of the bottom circle of the five, okay? Can you assmne
13 that?
1 4  A Ye s .
15 Q All right. If a cell phone is physically
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I located in it's entirety, somewhere inside the
2 geographical area outlined and what appears in the hot
3 pink. That's L5 -- 651C, right?
4  A  Y e s ,
5 Q You would expect that cell phone to trigger
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I he located somewhere with it appears pink, right?
2  A  Ye s .
3 q But no way can it tell us exactly where it
4 was, can it?
5  A  N o .
6 Q Or give us an address to name the place where
7 the cell phone was, correct?
8      MR. URICK: Objection.
9      THE COURT: This question has been a§ked and

10 answered and Mr. Waranowitz I'I1 let you answer it onc
tl more time and your answer to that questiortis, it can't
12 give you an address of where the phone was, can it?
13      MR. WARANOWaTZ: NO, it can not give you an
14 address of where the phone was.
15      THE COURT: Very well. Your next question.
16      BY MS. GUTIERREZ:
17 Q On any day, right?
18      MR, WARANOWITZ:
19 h On any day.
2o Q Now, sir, when you made the origination test
21 you said you caused a phone call to he made, correct?
2 2  A  Ye s .
23 Q You didn't have to dial the phone numbers
24 into the phone correct?
25 A I dialed a code.
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l Q You dialed a code which is not the phone
2 number, correct?
3 A It could be considered a phone number.
4 Q Okay. Butitwasn't the phone number that
5 you were dialing, fight?

6 that  s ignal  ins ide the five,  correct?
7  A  C o r r e c t .
8  Q  A n d  f o r  y o u r  r e c o r d s  t o  h e  a b l e  t o  t e l l  u s

9 that ,  correct?
l 0  A  Y e s .

6 A It does the same thing a phone number does.
7 Q It does the same thing meaning it triggers
8 the signal at the cell site, correct?
9  A  Y e s .

t0 Q But you weren't asked when you did your
11 Q But your records, based on receipt of the 11
12 signal can't telI us exactly where ihe cell phone was 12
13 when it made that, can it? 13
14 A No, it can not. 14
15 Q And it can't tell us. for instance, if it's a 15

origination test to actually dial the same numbers that
you knew to have been dialed back on January 13th,
19997

MR. URICK: Objection.
BY MS. GUTIERREZ:

16 good performance phone, corrcct?
1 7  A  N o .
t8      MR. UI~CK: Objection.
19       BY MS. OUTIERREZ:
20 Q Or a bad performance phone, correct?
21       MR. WARANOWITZ:
2 2  A  N O .

23 Q And from your expertise, what the records can
24 tell us is that you would expect the phone that made
25 the call, that triggered the signal inside the five to

16 Q Were you?
17      THE COURT: Overruled.

MR. WARANOWlTZ: No, with an explanation.
19       BY MS. GUTIERREZ:
2o Q Well, my question only asked for a yes or
21 not.
22 MR. URICK: Objection.
23 THE COURT: Overruled or sustained, I'm
24 going to allow the witness to explain his answer and if
25 you would explain your answer. You do not have to
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answer a yes or no and you don't have to say with an
explanation, just answer the question would be fine.

MR. WARANOW1TZ: Yes,  mata-rfl.

4 THE COURT: You may now provide your answer.
S MR. WARANoWITZ: The phone number that you

are dialling on a cetl phone does not effect what cell
7 s te you originate on. whether it's long distance.
I local or your voice mail. It does not effect how you

9 access that cell site.
I 0       B Y  M S .  G U T I E R R E Z :
II Q Well, sir, so the answer te my question is
12 no, you weren't asked to dial these numbers?
13        MR.  WARANOWITZ :

14 A NO, I was not asked to dial those numbers.
Q And you didn't, did you?

1 6  A  N o .

17 Q You didn't dial call number one to that
t8 number, did you?
19 A No, it was not necessary.
20 Q And you didn't dial -- I didn't ask you that,
21 sir.
2 2       T H E  C O U R T:  M s .  G u t i e r r c z .
23       BY MS.  GUTIERREZ:
24 Q Did you d ia l  - -
25       THE COURT:  MS.  Gu t i c r rez ,  one  moment.  Your

Page 154

| answer, sir. was, I was not asked to do that, is that
2 what you said?
3       M R .  WA R A N O W I T Z :  T h a t  i s  c o r r e c t .  I  w a s  n o t
4 asked to do that and it is not necessary to do that.
5        BY MS.  OUTIERREZ:
6    Q It's not necessary to conduct your
7 origination test, correct?
8      THE COURT: Do you understand the question?
9      MR. WARANOWITZ: Could yot l  ask that again
10 please?
11       BY MS. GUTIERKEZ:
12 Q YOU answered it wasn't nerxssary to dial the
13 nurnber I asked you if you dialed correct, right?
14       MR.  WARANOWITZ :

1 5  A R i g h t .
16 Q And your answer was you didn't dial it,
17 right?
1 8  A  N o .
19 Q Well, did you dial it or didn't you?
20 A No, I did not dial i t.

Q All fight. And then you said you needed to
22 explain why not, correct?
2 3  A  Ye s .
24 Q And you said it wasn't necessary, right?

A It was not necessary to dial those specific
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I phone numbers.
2 Q So, your answer to my question is, yes. You
3 then said, it wasn't necessary, right?
4      MR. URICK:. Objection.
5      THE COURT: The objection is sustained. Mr.
6 Waranowitz, we're sitting here, why don't you tell us
7 why it wasn't necessary.
8 MR. WARANOWFfZ: /just did. /
9 THE COURT: No, tell us why it wasn't
10 necessary for you not to dial the numbers. Ms.
11 Gutlerrez is asking you that question, if you could
12 just answer it.
13      MR. WARAHowrrz: It is not necessary to dial
14 those phone numbers because they do not effect what
15 ceil site you originate on.
16      THE COURT: All right. Very well. Next
17 question.
18      BY MS. OUTIERREZ:
19 Q So, the only impact would have been to your
20 origination test, fight?
21       MR. WARANOWITZ:
2 2  A I m p a c t ?
23 Q Of dialing or not dialing the numbers would
24 have been to your origination test, correct?
25 A I 'm sorry, I don't understand.
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1 Q Mr. Waranowitz, lets go back to the
2 triangular--
3 MR. URIUK: Objection.
4       B Y  M S .  G U T I E R R E Z :
5 Q Up bere on cell site 651, correct?
6 THE COURT: The objection is overruled. The
7 witness has indicated he does not understand Counsel's
8 question, so Counsel may clarify the question and Mr.
9 Waranowitz, if you would follow her direction and

to again, if you don't understand her question,just say,
I 1 I do not understand the question.
12 MR. WARANOWITZ: Yes, Your Honor.
13 THECOURT: All right. Very well.
14       BY MS,  GUTIERREZ:
15 Q The test that you performed, yott performed it

16 you mid us in may different locations, correct?
[ 7 MR. WARANOWITZ:

t8 A Yes.
19 Q And the test that you performed was the same
20 at every location, was it not?
2 1  A  Y e s .

22 Q And it was always performed under your phone,
23 correct?
2 4  A  Y e s ,

25 Q Your Efickson phone, correct?
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AYe s .

2 Q Not a Nokia, correct?
A Correct.

4 Q Not a Nolda of this certain model, correct?
5 A Correct.

Q And the propose when you performed that test
7 was to determine when you performed the test on the day
8 that you did so. what if any cell site it would signal,
9 correct?

1 0  A  Y e s .
11 Q It was the only purpose of your test,
12 eOtTeCt ?
1 3  A  Y e s .

A No.
2 Q Eighteen?
3 A No.
4 Q Twenty-two?
5 A No.
6 Q Twenty-three, twenty-four, twemy-five')
7 A No.
8 Q Twenty-six?
9 A No.

Q Thim]?
11 A NO.
12 Q Thirty-one through ththy-fou~?
13 A No.

l a Q Now. you never dialed the number, 869-9498 --
15 MR. URICK: Objection.
] 6 BY MS. GUTIERREZ:

17 Q Did you?
1 8 THE COURT:  Over ru led.

1 9 M R .  WA R A N O W I T Z :  N o ,  I  d i d  n o t  d i a l  t h a t

14    Q You were never asked to dial any of thos~
15 numbers, correct?
1 6  A C o r r e c t .
17 Q And you did not do so, correct?
1 8  A C o F ( e e t ,

Q And you didn't dial any of your calls at any
20 number.
21
22
23
24
25

BY MS. GUTIERREZ:
Q And you weren't asked to do so, were you'?

MR, WARANOWITZ:

A No, I was not asked to do so.
Q By anyone?

10
I I
t 2
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
~0
!1
~2
~3

24
25

20 of the locations you were taken by Ms. Murphy at any of
21 the specific times listed in call time, were you?
2 2  A  N o .
23 Q No. After you completed all of the tests at
24 the locations that don't appear on the chart, after you
25 eorepletod them you had reported all of your findings to

6 MR. URICK: Objection.
7 MR. WARANOWITZ: No,
8 THE COURT: Overruled.
9 BY MS. OUTIERREZ:

Q Or in five?
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1 A By anyone I Ms. Murphy because she was there in the car with you,
2 Q But when you didn't dial 340-7374~ did you? 2 right?
3 A N o . 3 A I reported them as I saw them, yes.
4 O And if you would look at your sheet, you 4 Q Okay. So, as you went along, you gave her

didn't dial the phone numher listed in four, did you? 5 the heads up, right?
6  A  Y e s .
7 Q And at no t ime during that day, at any t ime
8 did you tell Ms. Murphy, I did this test, Ms. Murphy,
9 and I can tell you --

10 THE COURT: Ms. Gutierrez, at this point
MR WARANOWITZ: I t we're going to interrupt because 1 note that it is now

a NO, 12 12:30. I'm going to take a lunch and recess at this

Q Or in six? 13 time and you will come back after luncti and continue
A NO. 14 with this questioning. Ladies and gentlemen, we have a
Q Or inseven?
A N o ,
Q Or in eight?
A N o .
Q Or in nine?
A N o .
QQ Or in twelve'?
A NO.
Q Thirteen?
A NO,
Q Seventeen.

15 number of things that are going to he taken place at
16 lunch time. This Court will he tied up at lunch time
17 as well.
18 So, we're going to recess from this t ime unti l
t9 2:15 at which time we will return with the continued
2o questioning of this witness. Lathes and gentlemen, as
21 you go out please leave your note pads face down.
22 Please do not discuss the testimony of this witness or
23 anyone else, amongst yourselves or with anyone. Your
24 note pads will be locked away by the Clerk and retlumed
25 to your chairs after the lunch and recess. Please go

D,Jr~*  1~7 .  Doer ) )  ] ,~ lq
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I with Deputy Church and he will take you back to the
2 juryroom. I'msowt. Yes, you mey go over totbe
3 jury assembly room any time now -- between now and
4 1:30, they are ready for you. Any time between now and
5 1:30 you may go to jury assembly and be paid. They're
6 expecting you to come over any time between now and
7 1:30. It's up to you. You can go first or not, it's
8 up to you.
9 MS GtYrlERREZ: The courtroom will be locked

tO again?
1 ] THE COURT: The courtroom will be locked

12 during the recess.
1 3 MS. GUTIERREZ: Thank you.
] 4 THE COURT: If Counsel will wait one mot~-nt
15 until all of out jurors leave.
16 (Tha jut/was excused from the counrcom.)
17      THE COURT: Mr. Waranowitz. I understand you

have made changes or adjustments to your travel
schedule?

MR. WARANOWITZ: Yes,
THE COURT: To depart at 3:30. I need to

advise you I have no idea what time you're going to
finish. I do not want you to be mislead in anyway that
I know or am aware of what time you will be done.
Counsel has the right to ask you questions and I can't
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anticipate or expect what that will entail.
2 Unfortunately, from 12:30 to two o'clock at least, this
3 Court is tied up in a sentencing hearing involving
4 three other judges. I am already late, I am going
5 directly there. We will resume promptly at 2:15 at
6 which time we will eominuc with the questions of Ms.
7 Gutierrez. Also let me advise you during the break,
8 you may not discuss your testimony with either the
9 State's attorneys or tbe Defense. They should have no

10 conversations with you re~arding your testimony and you
t I should have no conversations with anyone else. You are
12 a sequestered witness, do you understand?
13       MR. WARANOWlTZ: Yes, Your Honor.
14      THE COURT: Very well. This Court then
15 stands in recess until 2:15.
[ fi      MR, URICK: Your Honor, bel~)re we go off the
17 record we would just like to note for the record that
18 Ms. Gutierrez pounded ve~ heavily on Ms. Murphy's
19 chair at their last questioning in her questioning and
20 there was no reason for that display towards Ms.
21 Murphy.
22      THE COURT: Ms. Gutierrez, I'm going to ask
23 that you not pound on any chairs whether it be your
24 chair or anyone else's chair. I would also ask that
25 you will have an absolute fight to conduct cross
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I ex~dination, but I'd ask that you adjust your tone with
2 this wltn~s. This witness is a witness subpoenaed by
3 the State. He is not here of his own accord, he is
4 already as you know, being inconvenienced as to his
5 work or personal schedule.
6 That has nothing to do with you, but I'd ask that
7 common courtesy be afforded the witness and I'd ask
g that of all witnesses that come into this Com't.
9 However, you have absolute right to cross examine the
to witness and I'd ask that you continue to dothat, hut I
tl would just ask that you be mindful of those things and
12 1 would ask that all of us be mindful of common
13 courtesy. Not only with the witnesses, with the jurors
14 and with each other, and with that this Court will
15 stand in recess until 2:15.

BAILIFF: All rise.
17 (Lunch recess.)
IS Our/not present upon reconvening.)
19 THE COURT: We have called for the Defendant
20 to he brought up, he should he bere shortly. Ms.
21 Gutierrez, your client should be here shortly. Once he
22 is settled in we will have the jury brought back.
23      MS. OUTIERREZ: Judge, can we approach the
24 bench?
25 THE COURT: Certainly. please come up. Is
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this something we need to discuss with your client?
2 (Counsel approached the bench and tlb

following ensued:)
MS. OUTIERREZ: NO, 1 don't think so,
THE COURT: Is it a scheduling matter?

MS. OUTIERRF2.: Sort of,
7 THE COURT: You're sure you don't need your

i client hare'/.
9 MS. GUTIERREZ: I don't need my client here.
l0 Judge, the rest of my cross is not going to be that
11 long on this witness. Over the break I went and 1 ate
12 lunch, I don't know if the Court' s aware, I'm a
13 diahetie?
1 4 THE COURT: AIe yOU okay?

15 MS. OUTIERREZ: Well I'm not sure. I don't
16 -- I had lunch, things seemed to he fine. I was going
17 to say something to the Corm anyway because yesterda,~
18 eating so late is something that throws me off --
19        THE COURT:  Okay.

2 0 MS. OUTIERREZ: And I should have stopped and

2~ I didn't, I felt fine, but often times l just have bad

22 reactions a day or so later. I was fine, I left, we
23 walked back and by the time I got in the building 1 was
24 overwhelmed and had to vomit, I didn't feel like

walking up to my office where my blood sugar tester as,
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1 so I would like to do is to finish cross of this
2 witness which I don't think will take long, let them do
3 whatever redirect and then ask the Court to take a
4 short break, i would like to walk up to my office --

THE COURT: Thatfs fine.
MS. OLrflERR~: And test my blood sugar and

7 see if there's anything I can do, my medication is up
8 there and see if 1 can clear it up.
9      THE COURT: That will be fine. I have no --

10 you have no problem with that, do you?
It      MR. UPdCK: No.
12     THE COURT: And I would tell you that if you
13 want depending on what is going on we can stop.
14      MS. GUTIERREZ: Yes. 1 know. but I'm not -- I
15 just don't know and it's early enough that if I walk up
16 it may pass and I'll be fine.
17      THE COURT: Fine.
18      MR. URICK: Shouldn't we have the Defendant
19 present?

THE COURT: I really would Iike the Defendant20
I I  he re .
12 MS. GLrr IERREZ: Okay.  Al l  r ight.
13 THE COURT: "~t/hen it is scheduled --
14 MS.  OUTIERREZ:  We can  do  i t  a f t e rwards  o r

!5 something.
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THE COURT: Mr. Syed, we were discussing

2 scheduling for Friday. We have a juror that has
3 indicated that they had a vacation planned and they
4 Would be departing a fi:00 a.m.on.Eriday. We --
5      MS. otrnEP, gmz: It's juror number twelve, ts
6 it?
7 THE COURT: I thought it was six.
8 MR. URICK: I  think six.
9 MS. GtmERPJm: Okay.
t o THE COURT: And that juror dc~sn 't -- has
II planned to leave at 6:00 a.m. on Friday and we weren't
12 sure whether w~ ~ going to haveto sit on Friday
13 depending upon how the ~ progressed. What Counsel
14 and I are now about to discuss, we were waiting tot
15 you, is what the State and the Defense's pleasure is.
16 The choices are.@s follows: we can continue on
17 Friday which would nzan that juror numhe~ six would be
18 struck from the panel by agreement, alternate number
19 would take that seat because we can't take testimony
20 with a missing juror and juror number six would be
21 excused or we carl stop the testimony altogether on
22 Friday and resume with the testimony on Monday when all
23 tbe jurors that are currently in the panel will he
24 present.
25 So, those ~ the choices. You can talk to your
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1 THE COURT: To the wimesses or something.
2 MR. URICK: Vqhat are your plans for Friday
3 with the juror who wants to go on the weekend trip?

THE COURT: 'Well, today is?
MR. UPJCK: Wednesday.

6 MS. OUTIERREZ: Wednesday.
MR. URICK: Tomorrow is Thursday.

8 THE COURT: Tomorrow is Thursday, we're not
9 going to finish by tomorrow. So, why don't you guys

1O think about --
11      MS. OUTIERREZ: I need to talk to my client -
12      THE COURT: yeah, talk to film.
13      MS. GUTIERREZ: but 1 don't think he'll have
14 any objection to that.
15 THE COURT: And the choice would be. we
16 continue through Friday or we stop and we continue on
17 Monday.
18     MS. GUTIERREZ: Right.
t9      THE COURT: Just --
10    MR. URICK: We have --
11      THE COURT: You guys think about what you
22 want to do. Actually, he's here. So, why don't we
23 just bring him up.
24     MS. OUTIERREZ: Mr. Syed, come up for a
25 minute,
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attorney and indicate your feeling one way or another.

2 Have you already discussed this and are prepared to
tell me what your choice is?

MR. URICK: I think we have a slight
preference not to sit Friday.

MS. MURPHY: Ottr witnesses need to go to
7 work.
8 MR. URICK: And also being in Felony
9 narcotics, I've got so much other work, another day out

to of Court would give me a chance to get caught up.
11      THE COURT: Well, maybe we can do something
t2 by agreement. It would he nice if we could do it by
13 agreement then that way --
14 MR. URICK: We're not going to disagree one
15 way or the other. We would prefer Friday.
16 THE COURT: Okay. Whichever --
17      MS. OUTIERREZ: Judge, we would like to delay
t8 the decision making until the jury comes out and we an
19 picture--
20      THE COURT: V~[ho?
21 MS. OUT1ERREZ: Right, who's who and --
22      THE COURT: Okay.
23      MS. OUTIERREZ: And then so if we could come
24 up at the end of this witness we could then give you
25 our answer --
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THE COURT: Very well.
MS. GUI1ERREZ: In regard to that.
THE COURT: That will be fine. We'll start

as soon as we can have the jury brought back Thank
you.

(Counsel and Defendant rerarned to the trial
7 ~ablas and the following ensued:)
8      MR. URICK: Should we ask the witness to step
9 back in at this time?

10      THE COURT: Yes, please. And I'll have --
11 Deputy Church, if you could have the witness, Mr.
12 Waranowitz come back in the co~m.

(A bell sounded.)
14     THE COURT: That's probably the ju~ telling
t5 us that they're ready,
16 (The jury returned to the courtToom.)
17      THE COURT: Please be seated everyone. Ms.
18 Gufierrez, you may continue.
19      MS. GUTIERREZ: Yes, Your Honor.
20      THE COURT: And if I may just, for the
21 record, just indicate your name, sir.
22      MR. WARANOWITZ: My name is Abraham John
23 Waranowitz.
24      THE COURT: I'm reminding you you're still
25 under oath from this morning. You may continue.
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l BY MS. GUTIERREZ:
2 Q Mr. Waranowitz, just to clarify, you
3 indicated that you reported your findings b~sed on what
4 you called your origination test as they occurred to
5 Ms. Murphy?
6       MR. WARANOWITZ:
7  A  Y e s .
8 Q Is that correct? Andyour findings coald be
9 categorized essentially as a statement that a certain

10 address would trigger a certain site, is that not
l I correct?
1 2  A  N o .
~3 Q Well, sir, did you report your findings to
14 Ms. Murphy in regard to all of the addresses that she
I5 pointed out and she took you to as to whether or not
16 they trigger a site or sites?
1 7  A  Ye s .
18 Q So, you reported that information, correct?
1 9  A  Ye s .
20 Q And that information would fairly be
21 characterized if it were written as if a cell phone at
22 Rolling Road at 170 triggers cell site L651C or L698A,
23 is that correct?
2 4  A  Ye s .
25 Q Okay. And in fact, on many of the addresses,
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l 1208 Macado again,.you listed two separate cell sites,
2 did you not?

A Yes.
Q And as for the Security Mall site. sir'?
A Yes.

6 Q You also listed two separate cell sites?
7 A I believe I did, yes.
8 Q And, sir, you were in what specific Ioe'ation
9 at Security Mall?

t0 A We drove around the mall.
t l  Q  Around  the  ma l l?
1 2  A  Ye s .
13 Q Not inside the mall?
14 A COlTeCt.
15 Q So tbe phnne call that you caused to be
16 originated was made from outside the mall?
1 7  A  Ye s .
18 Q And, sir, after you reported these findings
19 to Ms. Murphy you didn't then generate on top of that a
20 written report, did you?
2 1  A  N o .
22 Q No, and you've generated no written report,
23 did you?
24 A No, I did not.

Q And there's no information generated by your
Page 172

I company, such as would be generated when a real sell
2 phone user using any type of phone would make such a
3 call and the computer would record it and then at
4 billing print out the length of the call that your --
5 the time the call was made and the cell site that it
6 triggered?
7 A The test calls are not billable.
8 Q Okay. So, the answer to my question then,
9 sir, is no.

1 0  A  N o .
11 Q And in regard to the Briar Cliff Road
12 address, again you indicated to Ms. Mushy that that
13 also triggered two sites, is that correct?
14 A I'd like to see the report on that.
15 Q Well, sir, you didn't write a report, did
t6 you?
17 A No,  I  d id not .
18 Q And did you take notes?
19 A No, Ms. Murphy took notes for me.
20 Q Ms~ Murphy took notes. You took no notes of
21 your own origination test, correct?
22  A COITee t .
23 Q And did you check her notes for accuracy?
24 A I reviewed her notes and it was consistent.
25 Q And were they - -
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1 THE COURT: One moment, I'm sorry.
2 MR. WARANOW/TZ: I reviewed her notes, I'm
3 sorry, Your Honor.
4 THE COURT: YOU said, I reviewed her notes
5 and--
6 MR. WARANOWrlZ: I reviewed her notes and
7 they were consistent with what I say that date.
8 , BY MS. GUTIERREZ:

' 9 Q Did you review her nots as she took them?
10 MR. WARANOW1TZ:
J l A No, 1 did not.
12 Q You reviewed them after you were all done,
13 correct?
1 4  A  Y e s .
15 Q 1 gather to say you went to viait a numher of
J6 addresses, did you not?
1 7  A  Ye s .
18 Q Thirteen in fact, isn't that correct?
1 9  A  Ye s .
20 Q And that took you a little while, didn't it'?
2 1  A  Ye s .
22 Q And you reviewed her notes after you finished
23 visiting and performing your origination test at those
24 locations, correct?
2 5  A  Ye s .
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Q And at that time you recalled that her notes

2 appeared to be accurate, correct?
3  A  Y e s .
4 Q Now, sir, you don't know the cell sit names
5 and numbers off the top of your head ordinarily, do
6 you?

A No, 1 do not have them memorized.
8 Q And you don't know their addresses, do you?
9 A No, I do not work with addresses on a daily

1o basis.
11 Q So, the answer to my question is no?
1 2  A  N o .
13 Q And, sir, yesterday when you were asked you
14 were given a list of addresses and identities of all
15 cell sites in the network, were you not?
1 6  A  Ye s .
17 Q When you were asked questions about the
18 location you merely looked them up, did you not?
1 9  A  Ye s .
20 Q They didn't refresh your lost memory off
21 where those cell sites were, was it?

22 A No, I know where the cell sites are from
23 experience.
24 Q From experience of having tested them before,
25 correct7

Page ]~
1  A  Ye s .
2 Q But you never tested any of these addresses
3 before, did you?
4  A  N O .
5 Q You weren't asked ever before by Ms. Murphy
6 or anyone to go to that specific list of thirteen
7 locations, were you"
8 A I'm sony. Ask that question again.
9 Q You were never asked before by Ms. Mmghy or

10 by anyone to go to that list of thirteen locations,
11 were you?
1 2  A  N o .
13 Q Nor to perform tsts?
14    A NO.
15 Q And that none of the thirteen locations did
16 you, yourself take notes.'?
]7 A No,  I  d id not .
I 8 Q You relied on her to take notes, right?
1 9  A Ye s .
2O Q' And then later after you were all done all
n thirteen locations you checked her notes for accuracy,

22 correct?
2 3  A  Ye s .
24 Q All right. Now, Crosby on your list you
25 listd as also triggering two separate cell sits, did
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1 you not?
2 A I  bel ieve so.
3 Q And Crosby, is that a nmae of a building or a
4 street perhaps?
s A Crosby I believe is a street that crosses
6 695.
7 Q And I70 Park and Ride you listed as
8 triggering two separate cell sites depending upon where
9 you were at that location, correct?

I O  A  Ye s .
11 Q And Route 40 at Cooks Lace up to Forest Park
12 triggered, in fact, depending again on where you were
13 on one of those roads, three separate cell sites, did
E4 it not?

!15 A l'd have to review the nots.
16 Q Okay.  Youdon' t reeal l thatoffhand?
17 A I don't recall off hand exactly.
18 Q Okay. And, sir, it would be fair to say that
19 a location triggering three cell sites, not two cell
20 sites was unusual even from your list of thirteen
21 properties, wasn't it?
22 A It is not unusual.
23 Q No, but now, sir, in regard to Gaiston Park,
24 again, you indicated to Ms. Murphy that that location
25 would ~zigger three separate cell sits, did you not?
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1 A I recall two cell site&
2 Q Two cell sires. An& sir, as to the only
3 other location was Woodlawn High School, correct?
4 A I don't remember if there are more at this
5 point.
s Q Well, sir, do you recall that Ms. Murphy
7 listed thirteen locations that you reported to her
8 orally on?
9  A  Y e s .

10 Q And are you aware that of the list I just
It read you, that Woodlawn would be the thirteenth
12 location?
13 A Wcediawn High School?
1 4  Q  Ye s ,  s i r .
1 5  A  Y e s .
16 Q And, sir, that's the Woodlawn High School
17 that we discussed and you looked up on your map book,
18 correct?
1 9  A  Y e s .
20 Q And that was a place that Ms. Murphy took
21 yOU, con-eet?
2 2  A  Y e s .
23 Q On that day, that you don't recall when it
24 was?

2 5  A  Ye s .
Page 178

1 Q Now, sir, this morning and we discussed again
2 that, of course, on t~ test that you did, you knew
3 where you were when you were doing the test, right?
4  A  Y e s .
5 Q And you knew where the cell phone was
6 physically located that you caused to originate a phone
7 call, correct?
8 A Yes, the test phone call.
9 O That what you did was punch in a code as you

to said, correct?
I  t  A  Ye s ,
12 Q Not a phone nmnber, correci?
13 " A NOt a standard phone nmnher.
14 Q And in any event, not a phone numher on
15 State's Exhibit 34, correct?
1 6  A  Y e s .
17 Q And you knew the location of the cell phone
18 that would processing the signal, whatever code you
19 entered into it, were it was, right?
2 0  A  Y e s .
!1 Q It Was in your hand, right?

A Yes.
!3 Q And your hand was next to the physical

presence of Ms. Murphy, was it not?
! 5  A  Ye s .
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l Q On each occasion that you visited these
2 ~n locat ions,  correct?
3  A  Y e s .
4 Q But you know that because you were there,
5 right?
6  A  Y e s .
7 Q You knew who had that cell phone in their
8  hand ,  d id  you  no t?                      , "
9 A Which cell phone?

10 Q Cell phone you were using, sir.
11 A  Ye s .
12 Q Okay. Thereisn't any other eell phone that
13 we don't know about, is there?
1 4  A  N o .
15      MR. UPJCK: Objection.
16       BY MS.  OUTIERREZ:
17 Q There isn't a hidden cell phone here, is
18 there?
1 9 THE COURT: Sustained.
2 0 BY MS. OUTIERREZ:
21 Q YOU didn't conduct the test on any other cell
22 phone then your own Erickson that you used at the time.
23 correct?
2 4        M R .  WA R A N O W I T Z :

2 5  A  Y e s ;
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1 Q And, sir, at the time you conducted this test
2 you were an engineer for AT&T, were you noi?
3  A  Y e s .
4 Q You were using an Eriekson phone, correct?
5  A  Y e s ,
6 Q Although you told us that AT&i" had issued its
7 engineers Nokias, correct?
8  A  Y e s .
9 Q You chose the Eriekson phone for the test

10 that you were going to administer at Ms. Murphy's
It directions, did you not?
1 2  A  Y e s .
13 Q She didn't chose it for you, did she?
1 4  A  N O  s h e  d i d  n o t .
15 Q And you never substituted mother phone for
16 any of these tests, did you?
1 7  A  N O .
18 Q No, sir, you were asked by Mr. Mushy this
19 morning that based on your experience with Nokias in
20 your business, whether or not a Nokia would perform
21 competently, comparably to the Eriekson, correct?
2 2  A  Y e s .
23 Q And you answered that you thought so, that
24 was your opinion, right?
2 5  A  Ye s .
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I Q And by comparably you meant that they'd
2 perform exactly the same?
3 A Tllcy perform ahalost exactly the same,
4 Q And, s i r,  is  that  your opin ion as to every

5 Erickson and every Nokia?
6    A Generally.
7 Q Generally, ideally, right?
8  A  Ye s ,
9 Q What you'd expect them to perform, correct?
1 0  A  Y e s .
11 Q But it 's fair to say based on your earger
12 statements that phones perform in a different fashion.
13 do they not?
t 4  A  Y e s ,
t5 Q And i t  would he fa i r  to say that  among Noklas
16 on any model number, some ale very good performers, are
17 they not?
[ 8 A I  am fmndiar  wgh the Nokia 6160.
19 Q Only as to Ihe 6160. Out of the thousands of
20 Nokia 6160 some are good l~rformers, are they not?
2 1  A  Y e s .
22 Q Some exceed expectations, do they not?
2 3  A  Y e s .
2 4 Q And stone are mediocre performers, m'e they
25 not'?
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A Yes.

2 Q And some are poor performers, are they not?
A Yes.
Q You couldn't tell which category any Nokia

6160 fell into by looking at it. could you?
6  A  N O .
7 Q You'd,have to test that individual phone to
8 know what type of peffonner it was, would you not?
9  A  Y e s .

to Q To find out whether it met expectations and
] I performed as it was expected to do, correct?
12 .  A Yes.
~3 Q Or whether it fell below that line and
14 performed poorly.
~ 5  A  Ye s .
16 Q Isn't that correct? And pan of performance
17 in the differences of phones are that some phones are
18 able to see some signals and other phones can not,
19 isn't that correct?
20 A Some phones would be able to see signals at
21 differem levels then other phones.
22 Q And the level at which a phone sees a signal
23 you would characterize in terms of strength or
24 weakness, would you not?
1 5  A  Ye s .

Page II
1 Q And the readings one gets from phones that
2 are translated to the computer records are related to
3 the phones seeing a signal or not, are they not?
4 A I'm sorry, could you ask that again?
5 Q A phone either sees a signal or it does not,
6 correct?
7  A  Y e s .
8 Q And the seeing part of the signal is the
9 ability to recognize and communicate with the signal,

10 correct?
I  1  A  Ye s .
12 Q So. two phones that are side by side in
13 equate distance from a signal being sent from the cell
14 phone tower, one could read it and one could not,
15 correct.'?
1 6  A  Y e s .

~t1 7 Q And one of them could read one signal that,s
18 actually closer to both phones, correct?
1 9  A  Y e s .
2o Q 'And one phone couldn't read that signal
21 that 's  c losest ,  correct?
2 2  A  Y e s .
23 Q In fact, for some reason one phone could see
24 a signal that's further away bat not see a signal
25 that's closer, could it not?

Page 18,
A  N O ,

2 Q WeI1, sir, the ability to see a signal is
3 part of what you would call its performance, correct?
4  A  Y e s .
5 Q Now, sir, in regard to the same thing that
6 we're talking about, yottr test you can only tell us
7 that that phone was in your hand because you did it,
8 right?
9  A  Y e s .

I0 Q And you were there, right?
I I  A  Y e s .
12 Q And Ms. Murphy was there and saw you did it.
13 right?
1 4  A  Y e s .
]5 Q In regard to the AT&T records, the billing
16 records, do you recall those billing records that I
17 showed this morning?
1 8  A  Y e s .
19 Q They print out the existence of a call, do
20 they not?

1 2 1  A Ye s ,
22 Q They print out the number the call was made?
2 3  A  Y e s .
24 Q And the records are set up so that it is
25 clear that it is the cell phone whose bill it is that
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is suppose to have made those calls, correct?
2  A Y e s .
] Q Okay. And they also print out the time the
4 calls were made?
5 A yes.
6 Q And the duration of the call?
7 A Yes.
8 Q And the cell site it triggered, correct?
9 A Yes.

t 0 Q Okay. Those billing records can never tell
I l you who had the cell phone in their hand when they made 1 l

12 the call the computer registers, can they? 12

13 A That is true. 13
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Q And thalr's bill may bill titan if they called

2 me on their cell phone too, might they not?
3  A  Y e s .
4 Q And that would be even if my cell phone
; network billed me, correct'?

6 A I  bel ieve so.
7 Q But my celt phone record can only bill the
8 nttmher that dialed my number, correct? ,.
9  A 1  don ' t  know.

lo Q Well, my cell phone records would list the
numher just like it listed in the records you reviewed
this morning, would it not?

MR. URICK: Objection.

14 Q And they never at tempt to do so,  do they?
t 5  A  N O .

Q And al l  the records f rom your company or

17 anywhere else regarding testing a phone, the records
tS don't reveal who had the phone, do they'?
1 9  A  N o .
20  Q  Or  who  d ia led  the  numbers?
2 1  A  N o .
22    Q Nor who they were next  to,  i f  anyone?
2 3  A  N o .
2 4 Q And they can't tell us tbe location of
25 whoever it was that may have caused a phone call to be
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made --
2  A  N o .
3 Q From that particular phone, correct?
4  A  C o r r c c t .

Q Just like your testing on your phone, that
6 day that you don't remember, you can only tell us what
7 your phone did according to you, right?
8  A Cor rec t .
9 Q And the records also can't tell us, they
10 record, cell phone records record when, if I own a cell
11 phone and somebody calls me on my telephone, I don't
12 ask them to call me, but they call me anyway, 1 pay for
13 that, don't 17

14    A I think so.

1 4
1 5
1 6
1 7
1 8

THE COURT: Sustained.
BY MS. OLrrtERREZ:

Q Now, sir, those records, whatever it is they
list, can never tell me who actually dialed the number,
can it?

MR. URICK: Objection.
THE COURT: Sustained. This h~s been a.sked

and answered at least twice.
BY MS. OUTIERREZ:

Q Sir, if I looked at my records and it
designated a call, if I recalled making that call then
I would know I made it, correct?

MR. URICK: Objection.
2 THE COURT: Sustained.

BY MS. GLrrlERRF~:
4 Q Sir, if I didn't recall making the call and 1
5 enquired of your network to tell me who made the call
6 from my cell phone it couldn't tell me that, could it'?
7      MR. ORICK: Objection.
8      THE COURT: Sustained, We've asked and
9 answered this line of questioning, please move on.

I 0 BY MS. OUTIERREZ:
I I Q Sir, many phones of many makes and models
12 have memory capability, do they not?
13       MR. WARANOWITZ:
1 4  A  Y e s .

Q That record within the phone itself, a list
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t5 Q if i,m charged by the minute of use, right?

t 6  A  I  t h i n k  s o .
17 Q Even i f  I  don' t  know the person and i t 's  a

18 wrong number, they reach me on my cell phone and I have

19 to talk to them for thirty seconds to figure out they
20 dialed the wrong number, I stil l get billed for that
21 they seconds, do I not?
2 2  A  Y e s .
2 3 Q Even though I  don' t  know the parson who

24 originated the call on another unknown phone, correct?
2 5  A  Y e s .

15
16 of numbers that's called, does it now?
1 7  A  Ye s .
18 Q And that would include Erickson phones that
t9 have memory capability, correct?
2 0  A  Ye s .
21 Q And Motorola phones that have memory
22 capability, con'net?
2 3  A  Ye s .
24 Q And Nokia phones that have memory capability,
25 correct?
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l  A  Y e s .
2 Q If the phone has memory capability if can
3 print up or display the identity of numbers that have
4 either called that phone or been called by that phone,
5 can it not?
6 A In most cases, yes.
7 Q But that's the limit of what it can tell you,
S isn't that corre, ct?
9  A  Y e s .

10 Q It can't tell you who placed the calls, can
n i t?
12       MR.  UP~ [CK:  Ob jec t i on .
1 3       T H E  C O U R T:  S u s t a i n e d .
14       BY MS.  OUTIERREZ:
15 Q As to the memory capability, sir, can it?
16      MR. URICK: Objection.
17      THECOURT: Overruled. As the memory
t8 capabilities of the phone can it tell you who made the
t9 call?
!0       MR.  WARANDWITZ :  No ,  i t  can not .

i21       BY MS, OUTIERREZ:
Q And it can not tell you as to the memory

23 capability the identity of who received the call, can
24 it?
2 5 MR. WARANOWITZ:
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1 A No i t  can not .
2 Q Given what you've described as your
3 familiarity with Nokia phones, sir. I'm going to show
4 you what's in evidence. Can you tell us if that phone
5 has memory capability?
6 A l've had a Nokia 6160 and it has memory
7 capability,
8 Q Your Nokia 6160 has memory capabilities, is
9 that correct?

I0 A The Nokia that I -- the Nokia 6160s that I
I I have used all have meroory capability.
12 Q Well, sir, I'm asking you, can you look at
13 this particular 6160 and tell us if it has memory.
14     MR. UKICK: Objection.
15     THECOURT: Overruled.  Can you tell if this
16 panieular exhibit, whether it has memory or not?

MR. WARANOWITZ: [ can not do that because
18 the hattery is dead,
19       BY MS.  GUTIERREZ:

20 Q Were you never asked to examine its memory
21 capabilities which you believe it would have?
2 2       M R .  WA R A N O W I T Z :

23 A I'm sorry, Could you ask that question
24 again?
25 Q Were you personally ever asked by anyone to

2
3
4

5
6
7
8
9

1 0
11
1 2
13

l examine the memory of this phone?
A Before now, no.
Q And you, of course, did not, did you?
A I did not.

MS. GUT1ERREZ: Nothing further.
THE COURT: Anything further from the State?
MR. URICK: Extremely briefly, Your Honor.

REDIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. URICK:

Q Lets cut to the chase here.
MS. OLrl'IERI',EZ: Objection.
THE COURT:  ML Ur i ck ,  w i thou t  t he  added

14 coznmental~ you make ask your first question.
1 5       B Y  M R .  U R I C K :
16 Q Cell phone ~cords are computer records
17 maintained by the AT&T Wireless Corpdrntion, are they
18 not?
19       MR.  WARANOW1TZ:
2 0  A , Ye s .
21 Q They show that a particular number on a
22 particular date either dial up or received a call, is
23 that correct?
24  A Cor rec t ,
Z5 Q That that call went through a particular cell
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I site tower or stanzc~zre, co/Tect?
2  A  C o r r e c t ,
3 Q And in order for that to have occurred the
4 phone had to be somewhere within the coverage area for
5 that particular cell site sector?
6  A  C O l T e c t .
7 Q And if somebody, drawing your attention now
8 to my ten and eleven, what is now in evidence as
9 State's 34. If somebody were in Lincoln Park with an

10 AT&T wireless subscriber phone and two calls those
11 calls would be recorded in the computer records,
12 correct?
1 3  A  C o r r e c t .
1 4  Q  A n d  t b e  w o u l d  i n d i c a t e  t h e  c e l l  s i t e  f o r

15 Lincoln Park, which L689C, is that correct?
1 6  A  C o l T e c t .
17 Q Can l see State's 3] please. Now, Ms.
18 Gutierrez showed you the business records for the cell
19 phone, showed to you the account billing date. I'd
~0 like you to Iook on there and see if you can see a
21 listing for the service user.
22 A Next to the text service user I see Adrian M.
23 Syed.
24 Q And does there -- that record indicate when
25 the order was placed or the service was started?



Condenselt!TM

5
6
7

8
9

1 0

page 193
A I see an order date of January I st -- January

llth, 1999.
Q Thank you. IfI may have the Court's

4 indulgence for just second.
THE COURT: Certainly.
MR. URICK: No further questions. Thank you.
THE COURT: Anything further. Ms. Gutierrez?
MS. GUTIERREZ: Yes, Your Honor.

RECROSS EXAMINATION

I I        BY MS.  GUTIERREZ:
12 Q With regard to, the question you were asked
13 about Lincoln park, sir.
1 4       M R .  WA R A N O W I T Z :
1 5  A  Y e S .

16 Q The cell site that you say would be triggered
17 if one were in Lincoln park and made a phone call,
18 isn't in Lincoln Park, is it?
1 9  A  I t  i s  n o t .
2o Q It isn't even near a streer that goes through
2t Lincoln Park, is it?
22  A No  i t  i s  no t .
23 Q And the cell site that you say was triggered,
24 would be triggered from any number of places in the
25 coverage area, correct?
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1  A  Y e s .

2 Q If the cell site were functioning properly,
3 correct?
4  A C o r r e c t .
5 Q And if the cell phone were operating at a
6 good level, correct?
7  A  C o r r e c t .
8 Q And that could literally thousands of
9 location inside a sector, one of three sectors serviced

lo for coverage by that cell site, correct?
1 1  A  C O I Te c t .

12 Q There is no cell site tower inside of Lincoln
13 Park, is there?
14 A NO there is not.
15 Q And there's no building upon which an antenna
16 that becomes a cell site is erected that is inside
t7 Lincoln Park, is there?
1 8  A  N o .
19 Q And there's no water tower pr other structure
10 to which an antenna or antennas are attached, is there?
t l  A  N o ,
22 Q So all you can tell us about Lincoln park is
23 that you were taken to a location inside there by MS.
14 Murphy, correct?
2 5  A  Y e s .
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Q And shown and told that this is where a body

2 was bttried, correct?
3  A  C o r r e c t .
4 Q And you barely had to go inside the area
; bounded by the Jersey wails, corr~t?

6 A I did not go behind the Jersey walls.
7  O  Okay.  Andyou  d idn ' tgoou ts ideo f tpemin
8 anyway?
9  A  N O .

Z0 Q And you caused a phone called to be
tl originated by punching a code, right?
1 2  A  Y e s ,
13 Q So, as to that date, the date which you do
14 not currently remember, you can tell us what your phone
15 did, correct?
1 6  A  Y e s .
17 Q But because it wasn't a billable call you
18 have no n~,.ord of that phone call, correct?
1 9  A No ,  I  dn  no t .
20 Q Of the cell site it triggered?
2 1  A No ,  I  do  no t .
2 2  Q  O f  t h e  d u r a t i o n  o f  t b e  c a l l ?
23 A No,  I  do not .
24 Q Of the time that you made that call, correct?
25 A No,  I  do not .
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l Q But you can tell us about it because you did
2 it, right?
3 A Yes.
4 Q And you told Ms. Murphy about what we did,
5 :olTeet?
6 A Yes.
7 Q And you relied on her to write down your
8 information as you told it, correct?
9 A  Ye s .

10 Q You never wrote down your own information,
l I :orrect?
1 2 A  C o r l  ~ t .

13 Q And you never generated any documentation
14 that would show that what you told us?
1 5 MR. URICK: Objection.
16 THE COURT: rm sorry, I didn't bear the end
t 7 of that question.
18 MS. OUTIERREZ: You never doe -- you never
1'9 generated any documentation to that effect, that which
10 you told us, did you?

THE COURT: Overruled.
MR. WARANOWITZ: Correct .

THE COURT: And the answer is correct.
BY MS. GLrrII~RREZ:

O And, sir, if you had generated the
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I documentation that would have been generated if it were
2 a billable call being made by the subscriber it still
3 would not have indicated on that documentation who
4 physically you were, would it of'?

MR. WARANOWrlZ:
6 A Can you ask that again?
7 Q If, sir, you were making a billable call as a
8 subscriber standing where you said you were when you
9 were directed to stand by Ms. Murphy and if because you

10 were a subscriber and because you were making a
l I billable call, the call generated records in your
12 network, those records would not have documented where
13 yOU were standing when Ms. Mmphy directed you, would
14 they have?
1 5  A  C o r r e c t .
16    Q Ttmm wouldn't have been a line or a separate
17 piece of paper that got spit of the computer that said,
t8 this subscriher was standing in this location, would it
t9 have?
20 A Correct .
21    Q Al l  i t  would have done is indicated that  a
22 certain cell site was triggered, correct?
2 3  A  C o r r e c t .
24 Q And based on your expectation for your
25 network that would indicate to you that it was probable
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that the cell phone, at least, was within the coverage

2 area designated, is :that correct?
3  A  Y e s .
4 Q And the coverage area for the celI site that

you lell us was generated by your making a call from
Lincoln Park is located near the intersection of Forest

7 Park Avenue and Windsor Mill Road, is it not?
8  A  Y e s .
9 Q And it includes at least three separate
10 apartment complexes that border Govins Manor, does it
t I not?
12 A I don't know how many buildings there are.
13 Q You're awm'e several buildings do border it,
14 are yOU not'./
15    A I don't recall.
16 Q And you of course didn't investigate, did
17 you?
1 8  A N O .
19 Q You would agree that if there were apartment
20 buildings that border Govins Manor, that that would
21 involve a significant amount of people in close
22 proximity to that cell site, would you not?

A I don't normally take apartment buildings and
population densities into my design.

Q Okay. Because that's outside of your

1 expertise, right?
2 A In th is s i tuat ion I  would not .
3 Q Well, sir, you said that one of the things
4 that you continue to do within three years after the
5 launch of this network is troubleshoot, isn't that
6 correct?
7  A  Ye s .
8 Q And that involves answering and trying to
9 figure out when you get customer complaints, isn't that

10 correct?
1 1  A  Y e s ,
1 2 Q And all of the time that you're dding this
13 since the launch of thls network you have received,
14 have you not) troubleshooting complaints involving
15 customers who's ordinary location would be in one of
16 the catchment meas ~ear or next to Oovins Manor, would
17 it not?
18 A I'm sorry, can you say that louder.
1 9 Q Sir, all of the complaints that you have
20 trouhleshooted in the three years since the launch of
21 the network, that would include complaints from
t2 customers whose primary lce.ation, specifically, their
t3 Iflace of residence inehided being within the catchment
24 area of the same cell site on top of the Govins Manor

25 apartment building, would it not?
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t A I don't recall any specific customer
2 complaints from --

Q And, sir, --
A That neighborhood.
Q Well, sir, your records keep track of that,

6 do they not?
7 A We have customer complaint records, yes.
8 Q And so if there were customers that had made
9 complaints about your networks performance, your

10 company records would be looked at, would they not?
t I MR. r2mCK: Objection.
12 THE COURT: Overruled.
13 MR. WARANOWrrz: Yes.
14 BY MS. GUTIERREZ:
15 Q And, sir, in regard to your preparation for
16 this cesas's testimony were you asked to see how
17 trouble free or troubled that cell site location was?
18        MR.  WARANOWITZ :
1 9  A  N o .
20 Q And did you do so?
2 1  A  N o .
2 2       T H E  C O U R T:  N o t h i n g .

23       MS.  GUTIERREZ:  NO.
24       THE COURT:  Ve ry  we l l .  Anyth ing fu r the r?
25      MR. URICK: No, thank you.
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THE COURT:  May  th i s  w i tness  be  exeu~d  a t

2 this time, Mr. Urick?
MR. UR1CK: At this rinm.

4 MS. OUTIERREZ: Yes, Your Honor.
THE COURT: And released from the summons of

6 subpoenas?
7 MR. URICK: Not from the State. Your Honor.
8 THE COURT: Not for the State?
9 MR.  URICK:  No .

l0 THE COURT: And for Ms. Gutierrez?
t I MS. UUTIERREZ: I don't believe I issued a
12 subpoena, l'm not sure. If I did, yes be's released.
t3 THE COURT: All fight. So, you may need to
14 call him again, is that what you're saying'?
t5 MR. U~CK: Yeah, I just -- I don't know what
16 I might -- if anything in rebuttal, so I don't want to
t7 release this witness.
18 THE COURT: Very well. I must advise you,
t9 sir~ that you may not discuss your testimony with
20 anyone. You must leave this courtroom at this time,
Zl you are a sequestered witness and based on what Mr.
n Uriak is saying you may be called again. So, since the
23 State would be calling you, please keep in contact with
24 the State's attorney's office to find out when you'll
25 be called. May ha be released today? Will you need
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I him bank today?
2 MR. URICK: NO, no.
3 THE COURT: So, he can be released today?
4 MR. URICK: Yeah. May I speak to him for
5 just a moment as ha walks out?
6      THE COURT: You're going to let him know in
7 terms of sebeduling?
8       M R .  U R I C K :  y e a h .
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I because that's the page that you had him reference.
2      MS. OUTIERREZ: Well, I object to that. That
3 marking was not made at the time of questioning, l'd
4 object.
5 THE COURT: NO, I'm not asking that any
6 markings be made on the map, but it is going to be
7 marked as an exhibit at my request and the page that
S was referenced by the witness at the time t~ witness
9 testified will be noted for the record and I'm asking

lO the clerk to do that.
11 MS. OUTIERKEZ: i'm not clear, Judge,if 1
12 did not do so I would move that exhibit into evidence.
13      THE COURT: Any objection to that Court's
14 exhibit being made part of the evidence?
1 5       M R .  U R I C K :  N O .
16     THE COURT: Very well. Let it he admitted.
17 All right. And, sir, you may than go.
18      MR. WARANOWlTZ: Pages 32,33 and 34,
1 9       T H E  C O U R T:  Ve r y  we l l .
20      MR. WARANOWlTZ: Let me make sure.
21      THE COURT: For the record the witness is
22 flipping through to make sure there are no personal
23 papers belonging to him contained in the book.
24      /dR. WAKaNOW/TZ: Is this the Defense?
25       THE COURT:  The  was  the  Co t t r t ' s .
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1 MR. WARANOWrI'Z: It is Court's.
2 THE COURT: Coul-t's exhibit because l:asked
3 that it be marked and I'd asked that it be noted and
4 now the Defense is asking that it moved in, so you can
5 make it Defense number -- what would be the Defense
6 next mtmhar?
7     MS. GUTIERREZ: I think it's one, Judge, but
8 I'm not.

9      THE COURT: Very well, you may speak to Mr.
10 Uriak with regard to any scheduling. Thank you very
11 much~ s i r.

12 MR. WARANOWlTZ: Thank 3~ou, Your Honor.
1 3       T H E  C O U R T:  Ye s .
14 MR. WARANOWlIZ: Does the Court need
15 information (inaudible)
16      THE COURT: Those items that have been marked
17 must remain.

9
l 0

11
12
13
1 4
1 5
1 6
2 7

THE COURT: Defense one,
(Defendant's Two was received
into evidence.)

MS. OUTIERREZ: Another --
THE COURT: Fm not  sure whether or  not  i t

MS. GUTIERREZ: I  th ink th is is  the first

THE COURT: You are excused at this time.

18      MR. WARANQWITZ: Should I mark the pages in
19 here that I looked at?
2 0       T H E  C O U R T:  Ye s .
21       MS.  GUTIERREZ:  You r  Honor,  I 'm  going to
22 object to the witness now marking the exhibit.
23     THE COURT: No, these were the exhibits that
24 were already marked. He's just showing the clerk whirl
25 page it was that he opened and I ask that he do that

18 Thank you very much, sir.
19      THE CLERK: The medical (inaudible)?
20      MS. GUTIERREZ: Oh, yeah, so this would be
21 Two, yes.
22      THECOURT: Defense Two. All right. Are we
23 need in those charts to remain where they are?
24 MR. URICK: No, 1 believe that can be put
25 back.
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THE COURT: Can you slide them along to the

2 side as I had'asked before and as you do that your next
3 witness, is that witness in the hallway?
4      MR.  URICK:  Yes .

THE COURT: And that is?
6 MR. URICK: Mr/Wiles.
7 THE COURT: Can you ask that Mr. Wiles,
8 Deputy Chtugh, have Mr. Wiles come into the courtroom
9 please.

l 0 MS. GUTIERILEZ: Defen.e/2, I/lay We approach?
l I THE COURT: Certainiy. Why don't we give
12 Counsel an opportunity to move some of these items.
13 ,lust have a seat for a mommt, sir. Thank you,
[4 Coun~l, for your assistan~ in moving thoSe items.
15 Al l  r ight .

(Counsel and Defendant approached the bench
t7 and following ensued:)
18      MS. oLrnEI~.EZ: Judge, I don't know if I
I9 misunderstood--
20      THE COURT: One second, one second. You were
2] going to let me know if we needed to take a break.
22      MS. GU~ERREZ: Yes. I thought I made it
23 dear that I knew that I needed a break.
24      THE COURT: Okay.
25      MS. GUT1ERREZ: And that 1 would like to take

Condenselt!

Page 2C ]
I thet juror particularly since she let us know ahead of
2 time and he doesn't want to take a break glven just hey
3 10ng this ease is taking particularly in light of what
4 he brought to my attention if we recall we told this --
5 the jmy panel that it was likely to take two weeks and
6 we're way beyond that. Not through anybody's fault b
7 that that's part of his concern to give up another day
8 for this panel when we're dearly going to go into the
9 middle of next week which would he the fourth calend~

l0 week, although we haven't sat continuously throughout
I 1 that time. So, his preference would be to allow this
12 juror to go and replace her with an a/ternatu.
13      THE COURT: I must say that we did have some
14 snow days so it effeeted --
15      MS. GUTIERREZ: Yes, oh, I know.
16      THE COURT: Ottr ability to proceed. Does the
17 State have any objection?
18      MR. URICK: We said we wouldn't object one
19 way or the other, we stated our preference but we have
z0 no objection to the other way as well.

THE COURT: In order to accommodate the
12  w i tness - -

23      MS. GUTIERREZ: We have no objection to doing
24 it now, it doesn't seem to make sense to have her --
2 5 THE COURT: Juror - -
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it now and then walk up to my office and go test my
blood sugar and then see how I'm doing.

THE COURT: Weean do it, that's fine.
4 MS. GUTIERREZ: Okay.  I  thought that  I  was
5 misunderstood.
6 THE COURT: I just wanted to make sure that
7 we at least made the transition to the next witness,
8 then 1 can advise this witness --
9 MS. OUTIERREZ: Right.
10      THE COURT: What he is to do and then we can
I 1 at that point advise the jur. and lake our afternoon
12 break.
1 3 MS. GUTIERREZ: Okay.
14      THE COURT: All right. And we'll do that at
z5 this time.
16 MR. URICK: What about the other matter for
t7 Friday? We were going to get a --
18 THE COURT: Yeah, what's your feeling?
19      MS. GUTIERREZ: I think that it is Mr. Syed's
20 preference that he doesn't want to take a break in
2J trial.

THE COURT: Okay.
?3      MS. GLrrIERREZ: And since there are tbur
24 alternates, all of whom have clearly been paying
25 attention, he certainly doesn'l want to inconvenience
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MS. GLrrlERREZ: Right, to make her come back

2 if she's not going to, you know, participate in
3 deliberations. It seems a waste to make her come back.
s so we have no objection to substituting her now.
5     THE COURT: I'll ask her as we get ready to
6 take tbe break to remain.
7 MS. GUTIERREZ: Okay. That's fine.
8      THE COURT: Or would you like me to do it at
9 the end of the day?

1 0 MR. URICR: She probably --
11      THE COURT:  Be  eas ie r  t o  do  i t  a t  t he  end  o f
12 the day since she's already hem.
13 MS. oLrrlERRF.Z: Well, 1 guess my sense is,
Is Judge, that if she's going to go then we should let her
15 go rather than make her sit when we're the ones that
16 know the truth that it matters her not that she sits.
17 We should just let her go.
18 THE COURT: And your position would he that
19 juror number -- alternate number one would replace her
20 as juror number, six, correct?
21      MS. GUTIERREZ: Yes, well accept, Judge, not
22 to waive our previous objection if you recall --
23      THE COURT: TO the voir dire selection
24 process.

25 MS. OUTIERREZ: Right, that it would have
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l been a juror number alternate four that would have sat
2 in that - so, whatever that is. Not waiving that
3 objection subject to that previous objection.
4 MR. URICK: No objention to alternate one.

THECOURT: Okay. Verywell. We'lltakea
6 break and iusu'uot tbe jury acoordingly.
7     (Counsel and Defendant returned to the trial
8 tables and the following ensued:)
9 THE COURT: Ladies and gentlemen, at the
10 request of Counsel, we are going to take a break. What
It we are going to do at thls time is auk that you return
12 to the jury room. Mr. Wiles, when we return I'm going
13 to ask that you come back and take the stand and you'll
14 be sworn in again and we will resume with your
15 testimony. Ladies and gentlemen, as you go back to the
16 jury room, first of all, if you could pass up the --
17 will we need Exhibit Nmnber 34 any more?
IS      MR. URICK: Not today.
19 THE COURT: I think they've moved it into
20 evidence, have t~ not -- have you not? Okay. I will
21 ask that we pass that form up please. And, Mr. Clerk,
22 will you take that please from the witnesses, from the
23 jurors. No, pass it this way, pass it, yes, to this
24 side. Thank you. Thank you. And secure those please.
z5 And also, I'm going to ask that as you go out, if --

Page 210
1 suike that ,
2 I'll ask that you all go out, do not discuss the
3 testimony of any of the witnesses, do not discuss it
4 amongst yourselves or with anyone else. Leave your
5 note pads face down on the chair, no one will read them
6 and go with - one moment. All right. Ladies and
7 gentlemen, I'm going to ask that you go -- is Ms.
8 Cennelly still here? All fight, Deputy Church is
9 going to wall you to the jury room. Will you please go
I0 with him at this time. Mr. Wiles, will you please
it remain.
t2     (The jury was excused from the courtroom.)
t3     THE COURT: Okay. I'm going to ask Mr. Wiles
14 if you'll remain standing for just a few moments.
15 Counsel, you may be seated. Deputy Church, please
~6 come. Mr. Wiles, will you go with Deputy Church
17 please? All right. This Court wilI stand in recess
t8 until Ms. Gutlerrez returns.

BAILIFF: All rise. Tiffs Court will stand in
recess.

!1     (Brief recess.)
2 2 (Jury not present upon reeonvening.)
23 THE COURT: As soon as the Defendant gets
24 here we will resume. Mr. Church, would you have Mr.
25 Wiles at least come in the courtroom so I can speak to
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1 him at the same tirae I speak to everyone else. Mr.
2 Wiles, just have a seat in the back there, just have a
3 seat in the back.
4 Ms. Gutlerrez, you want to take a momeht and
5 explain to your client. You can take them off, take
6 off the -- okay. All right. If we could bring the
7 jury panel back at this time. Mr. Uriek, I was
8 speaking to Ms. Gutierrez briefly at the break with
9 regard to whether or not she felt as though she could

10 proceed. It's four o'clock and she's asked that we
11 recess for the day, she's not feeling well, is that
12 correct, Ms. Gutierrez?
1 3 M S .  G U T I E R R E Z :  T h a t ' s  ~ t .
14      THE COURT:. And I have no objection to that.
15 You don't have any objection to that, do you?
16      MR. UPdCK: All the accommodation has been
17 for the State so far, 1 would not presume to object.
18      THECOURT:  Verywel l .  And,  Mr.  Wi les,- -
19      MS. OLrrlERREZ: Iexplained that to him.
20     THE COURT: Voly well. Mr, Wiles, you're
21 going to be directed to return to this courtrenm at
22 9:30 tomorrow morning because Counsel is not feeling
23 well, we're going to recess. I'm going to insmact the
24 jury as to such, but I'm letting you know at this time
25 that you should return to this cour~oom tomorrow
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1 morning at 9:30, do you understand?
2 MR. WILES: Yes, Judge.
3 THE COURT: And you're free to go at this'
4 time, if you would like.
5 MR. WILES: Thal ik  you.

6       THE COURT:  Now,  when  the  ju ly  comes in,  wha t
7 1 propose to do is to tell them the same tiring and ask
8 juror number six to remain.
9 MR. UPdCK: And tben just tomorrow morning
10 seat alternate one?
I 1      THE COURT: Yes,  I ' l l  seat them in the
12 morning. It just makes more sense and less confusion.
1 3      M R .  U R I C K :  O k a y.
14 THE COURT: Counsel, if you like to remain
t5 seated that's all right with me. Mr. Eric Syed. you
16 may remain seated if you'd like. Mr. Urick, Ms.
t7 Murphy, you may also be seated.
18 MR. UKICK: Thank you, Your Honor.
1 9 (The jury returned to the enurtroom.)
2 0 THE COURT: Ladies and gentlemen, good
21 afternoon once again. We've had some problems this
22 afternoon and those problems are going to require that
23 we recess for the day. If you look at the schedule
24 originally we were suppose to go to 4:30 today and so,
25 we're going to take care of those problems, we're going

Plme 209 - Page 212



Condenselt!TM

Page 213
I to resolve those and we've de~ided it's best that we
2 proceed in the morning. I do have a dooket but the
3 first ease on my docket has a whole lot off lawyers and
4 as I know and my experience that sometimes it's

! 5 difficult to get all lawyers together at the same time.
6 So, why we wait for them to get themselves
7 together we're going to start this case at 9:30.
8 Tomorrow morning, you'll go then to the Jury
9 Commissioner's office between nine and 9:30 and then

10 you'll report to the jury room here and we'll get
li started with this case at 9:30 and then as I've
t2 indicated we will resume -- I may have to pause in tM
13 morning to resolve my other docket matters but we will
14 have already started this ease up once again. I'm
15 going to ask that you go home tonight, leave your note
16 pads face down as I've said, I instructed you before at
I7 hinch time and all other times, do not discuss your
18 testimony, the testimony you've heard with anyone else.
19 I'd also tell you that the Court appreciates your
2O patience and diligence in coming each day on time and
21 waiting patiently as we handle those matters that need
22 to be handled outside of your presence.
13 I'd ask you to not discuss this ease or with
14 anyone at home or with your friends or anyone else
15 either amongst yourselves or if anyone tries to talk to
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I you about the case that you remember to inform the
2 clerk upon your return the next day and I hope you all
3 have safe journey home. I'm going to ask juror number
4 six to remain please. Thank you very much. You all
5 may go at this time.
6      (The jury was excused from the courtroom.)
7      THE COURT: Juror six, you may step up and
8 you may bring your pad with you. 1 understand that yot
, have a trip on Friday, is that eormet?

l0      JUROR: Yes, Friday morning.
11     THE COURT: Okay. If you could just turn a
t2 little bit to the side. What I need i0 advise you is
13 that I've had discussions with Counsel and it is our
14 wish that we proceed with the trial on Friday.
15       JUROR: Okay.
16      THE COURT: That is we're not going to skip
17 Friday. For that reason rather then wait until
t8 Thursday to tell you this we're going to excuse you
19 from the trial at this time.
20      JUROR: Okay.
21      THE COURT: It's by agreement of Counsel so
22 that you will not miss this trip that you've already
23 paid for. I understand it leaves at 6:00 a.m., is that
24 correct?
25 JUROR: Yes it does.
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THE COURT: So you am now excused and

2 relieved from jury duty. I also want you to know that
3 I greatly appreciate the time and attention that you've
4 devoted to this tria! and I also need to advise you
5 that if you pass the jurors in any way you can not
6 discuss what you would have done. I think by the time
7 you reach the jury room they'll he gone. Ms. Connelly
8 will escort you to make sure that you don't have any
9 corwct'~tioIIs--

tO JUROR: Okay.
I 1 THE COURT: Or that they don't ho.ve ally

' 12 eonvet'satioas with you.
13      JUROR: Okay.
14      THE COURT: And you're free to go with my
J5 thaalc~,
16      JUROR: Okay: Well, thank you.
17      THE COURT: If you no~l anything for*your
18 employer please let my chambers know, we'll be happy to
19 provide thai to you and here's my card again just in
20 ease you need something to verify. Can you give that
21 back. Let me make sum there's nothing on thebaek of
22 it. It just has my room numbers,
23      JUROR: Okay.
24      THE COURT: All right.
25     JUROR: All right. Well, thank you.
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THE COURT: Very well. Thank you very much.

2 And you can lake your notes with you if you'd like.
3      JUROR: Oh, okay.
4      THE COURT: Leave my pads.
5      JUROR: Okay.
6      THE COURT: So, we can use it for the next
7 juror, jury.
8 JUROR: Sure.
9 THE COURT: Very well. Thank you again.

10 JUROR: All right. Thank you.
I I THE COURT: Also sometimes Counsel wishes to
12 talk to a juror that's been excused. You're welcome to
13 talk to them if you would like to or if you don't want
14 to you don't have to because at this point you're free
15 togo.
16     JUROR: Okay.
17 THE COURT: Thank you.
18     JUROR: All right.
19 THE COURT: Have a good evening.
20 JUROR: All right. Thank you.
21 THE COURT: Be careful, be careful and Ms.
22 Connelly will go with juror number six. With that said
13 I will see you all then tomorrow morning at 9:30. I

:24 will as I said start this case first because I expect
25 that there's going to be some problem getting all the
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I attorneys together and tbe other matter.
2 So, while they're getting themselves together we
3 certainly could start with some testimony and I believe
4 we will be picking up with the cross examination of Mr.
5 Wiles, is that not conect?
6 MS. ou'rlEP.gEZ: Yes, Your Honor
7 THE COURT: Very well. 1'11 see you all
8 tomorrow morning at 9:30. This Court stands in recess
9 until 9:30 tomorrow morning.

BAILIFF: All rise.
(The trial w~s recessed for the day.)
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